
Peckham and Nunhead Community 
Council

Monday 19 March 2018
7.00 pm

The Green Community Centre, Nunhead Green, Nunhead London SE15 
3QQ

Membership

Councillor Cleo Soanes (Chair)
Councillor Sandra Rhule (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Evelyn Akoto
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Fiona Colley
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Gavin Edwards

Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Barrie Hargrove
Councillor Richard Livingstone
Councillor Victoria Mills
Councillor Jamille Mohammed
Councillor Johnson Situ
Councillor Michael Situ

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact Beverley Olamijulo on 020 7525 7234  or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk  

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 9 March 2018



Peckham and Nunhead Community Council
Monday 19 March 2018

7.00 pm
The Green Community Centre, Nunhead Green, Nunhead London SE15 3QQ

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME

2. APOLOGIES

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any 
item of business to be considered at this meeting.

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda.

5. MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 3 - 7

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the decision making meeting 
held on 17 January 2018.

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)

The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received.

7. ALLOCATION OF NEIGHBOURHOODS FUND 2018-19 8 - 52

8. CLEANER GREENER SAFER CAPITAL FUNDING PROGRAMME 2018-
2019

53 - 61



Item No. Title Page No.

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members to agree the recommendations contained within the report.

9. COMMUNITY COUNCIL HIGHWAYS CAPITAL INVESTMENT 2017-
2018 AND 2018-2019

62 - 69

Note: This is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members to agree the recommendations contained within the report.

Date:  9 March 2018



 
 

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council 
Forum meeting 

 
Monday 19 March 2018 

 
 
10. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
 

 Kwabena Amponsa from Peckham Levels 
Police Update – Owen Pyle 
Flood prevention update - John Kissi 
Bags of Taste - Sarah Pollard 
LoveMyJob - Lorna Mills 
 

 

11. NEIGHBOURHOODS FUND, HIGHWAYS AND CGS 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

 Please refer to the business agenda for more details and appendices. 
These decisions will be minuted as part of official business: 
 
Neighbourhoods Fund 2018-19 Awards 
Cleaner, Greener Safer 2018-19 Awards, Peckham and Livesey (South) 
Highways Capital  Investment 2017-18 and 2018-19 
 

 

12. DISCUSS TOPICS FOR 2018-19 MEETINGS 
 

 

13. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY WORKSHOPS 
 

 

 Introduction by Cllr Fiona Colley 

Community Infrastructure Levy is a pot of money generated by required 
contribution from Developers, towards providing and enhancing local 
infrastructure necessary to support development and increased population 
- for instance additional school places, expanding GP practices,  improving 
public transport, road safety and cycling facilities or creating better leisure 
and play facilities. 

Suggestions from Councillors and residents are assessed for feasibility 
and cost. 

The current list will be discussed and prioritised along with new 
suggestions. 

 

 

 BREAK  
 An opportunity for residents to talk to Councillors and Officers. 

 
 

1



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 
14. VOTE ON TOPICS FOR 2018-19 MEETINGS 

 
 

15. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 This is an opportunity for public questions to be addressed to the chair. 

 
Residents or persons working in the borough may ask questions on any 
matter in relation to which the council has powers or duties. 
 
Responses requiring specific information may be supplied in writing 
following the meeting. 
 

 

16. COMMUNITY COUNCIL QUESTION TO COUNCIL ASSEMBLY  

Contact 
For business items on 020 7525 7234  or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk   
Webpage: http://www.southwark.gov.uk 
For forum items on 0207 525 3690 or email gill.kelly@southwark.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 
 

2

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/


1

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council - Wednesday 17 January 2018

 

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council
Minutes of the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council held on Wednesday 17 
January 2018 at 7.00 pm at Harris Academy Peckham, 112 Peckham Road,  London 
SE15 5DZ 

PRESENT: Councillor Cleo Soanes (Chair)
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Fiona Colley
Councillor Nick Dolezal
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor Renata Hamvas
Councillor Barrie Hargrove
Councillor Richard Livingstone
Councillor Victoria Mills
Councillor Jamille Mohammed
Councillor Johnson Situ
Councillor Michael Situ

OFFICER
SUPPORT:

Gill Kelly, Community Council Officer
Alastair Huggett, Planning Projects Manager
Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 

The chair introduced himself and welcomed councillors, members of the public and 
officers to the meeting.

2. APOLOGIES 

Councillors Evelyn Akoto, Gavin Edwards and Sandra Rhule (Vice-Chair) submitted their 
apologies for absence.

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

There were none.

3
Agenda Item 5



2

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council - Wednesday 17 January 2018

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 

There were none.

5. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2017 be agreed as an accurate record 
and signed by the chair.

6. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS 

There were no deputations or petitions presented at the decision making meeting.

7. REALLOCATION OF  PREVIOUS FUNDING  FOR THE CLEANER GREENER SAFER 
PROGRAMME 

Note: This item is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members considered the recommendations contained within the report.

RESOLVED:

That the re-allocation of a total of £76,450 be approved. 

8. CLEANER GREENER SAFER CAPITAL FUNDING PROGRAMME 2018 - 2019 

Note: This item is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members considered the recommendations contained within the report.

RESOLVED:

That the allocation of funds for the 2018-19 Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) capital 
programme in the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council area to the list of 
applications set out below be approved. 

 
CLEANER GREENER SAFER 
2018-19 AWARDS  

 Nunhead ward
Ref Proposal Name Award
888490 Banstead Street improvement £3,000

905604
The  Cossall Park  Rejuvenation 
Project £15,000

905621
Kirkwood Nature Reserve 
Entrance Regeneration £20,000

4



3

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council - Wednesday 17 January 2018

909674
Upgrade Honiton Gardens 
environment and Security £13,500

910402

Nunhead Cemetery waste 
management and information 
project

£5,400

600027
Brayards Community 'Peace' 
Garden Project £15,000

912097 The Cossall Bike Store £6,000
912146 Paint Cossall - Part 1 £2,000
912563 Peckham Coal Line 1st Step £5,400
912728 Wheelie Bins for Cossall £1,000
912326 Home Work & Youth Club £4,870
600117 Brabourn Grove Cycle Hangar £5,000

   
 Peckham Rye ward 

Ref Proposal title Award
899089 Crystal Palace bike hoop £700
899346 Medina Bike Lockers £5,000
899913 Rye Hill Park Bike Lockers £5,000
901944 Rother House Bike Lockers £5,000
909290 Francesca Cabrini £4,105
910221 Homestall/Athenlay Storage £2,500
912680 Limes Walk Garden Room £10,585
910256 American Garden £21,600
600129 Glover House cycle storage £5,000

909716
Rye Hill Estate: Motorcycle Bay 
Security Rails £4,000

   
 The Lane ward 
Ref Proposal Name Award

909422
SJSC Peace Garden repair and 
extension £3,240

600012
 The Air Quality Inter Schools 
Breathe a Plant Project £3,600

600037 Heron House gating and fencing £6,500

912163
Creed House  Communal Area 
Improvement £9,000

909988 Habitat Planting and Lighting £5,400

910554

McDermott Grove Garden 
sculpture installation and 
improvement project £3,135

600021
'CRAB' Consort Railway Arch 
Bridge £12,000

600003 Elim - roof repairs/renewal £9,500

600065
The Villa - Zebra crossing - part 
funding £2,810

600060
Speed Reduction Measures on 
Scylla Road £10,000

910045 Talfourd Road hangar £5,000

888147
Bike Hangars outside Nutbrook 
Court £5,000

5



4

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council - Wednesday 17 January 2018

890245 Bike Hangar on Bellenden Road £5,000

909491
Bushey Hill Road Lambeth Bike 
Hangar £5,000

600121
Bike hanger for Reedham Road 
residents £5,000

9. DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2018 - 2019 

Note: This item is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members considered the recommendations contained within the report.

RESOLVED:

To approve the allocation of funds for the 2017/18 and 2018/19 Community Council 
Highways Capital Investment programme in the Peckham and Nunhead Community 
Council area to the list of proposals set out below:

Devolved Highways Budget -
2017-18 & 2018-19

 Nunhead ward 
Ref Proposal Name Award
901767 Bike hanger, Ansdell Road £10,000
600054 Build-out on Woods Road £12,000

600057
Install crossing facility at 
Hollydale/Gibbons Road Junction £54,000

   
 Peckham Rye ward 
Ref Proposal title Award
883820 Mamora Rd Bike Hanger £5,000
897578 Hichisson Rd Bike Hanger £5,000
908013 Waveney Rd Bike Hanger £5,000

600128
Underhill Rd/Dunstans Rd 
Junction traffic study £10,000

600130
Honor Oak Park - partial 
resurfacing £8,235

   
 The Lane ward 
Ref Proposal Name Award

912341

Avondale Rise-Bellenden Road 
Junction design improvements 
(The Lane) - Also submitted to 
South Camberwell ward £25,000

600065 The Villa - Zebra crossing £51,190

10. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT LIST 2018 - 2019 

6



5

Peckham and Nunhead Community Council - Wednesday 17 January 2018

Note: This item is an executive function for decision by the community council.

Members considered the recommendations contained within the report.

RESOLVED:

1. That the decision on the updates to the Community Infrastructure Project List 
(CIPL) for this community council area be deferred to a future meeting.

2. That the decision to agree a shortlist of prioritised projects for funding be 
deferred to a future meeting.

The meeting ended at 8.00 pm

CHAIR:

DATED:

7



 
Item No.  

7. 
Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
17 January 2018 

Meeting Name: 
Peckham and Nunhead Community 
Council 

Report title: 
 

Allocation of Neighbourhoods Fund  2018-19  

Ward(s) or groups affected: 
 

Livesey (South of Old Kent Road), Nunhead, Peckham, 
Peckham Rye, The Lane 

From: 
 

Director of Communities 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council allocate a total of £146.572 of 

the Neighbourhoods Fund 2018-19 from the list of applications outlined in Appendix 1. 
This amount consists of two elements, namely £135,000 available for 2018-19 (subject 
to the normal annual council budget setting process in February 2018) and £11,572 of 
unallocated funding carried forward from the previous year’s programme. 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2. The neighbourhoods fund was introduced in 2015 by merging two former revenue 

programmes known as cleaner, greener, safer revenue (CGS) and community council 
fund (CCF). The cabinet member for communities, employment and business 
authorised the amalgamation the CGS revenue fund and community council fund, into 
a single funding programme to create a new neighbourhoods fund for the 2015-16 
round and onwards. This decision was taken on 12 December 2014. 

 
3. The neighbourhoods fund has a borough-wide funding budget of £630,000 with an 

allocation of £30,000 per ward. This is subject to annual budget setting process. 
 

4. The purpose of introducing the neighbourhoods fund was to give community councils 
decision making powers over significant amounts of revenue funding, that they could 
allocate to meet locally determined priorities.  

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
5. Each ward will have £30,000 of revenue grants to allocate, but Livesey ward has 

£15,000 as it is divided between Peckham and Nunhead (South) and Bermondsey and 
Rotherhithe (North) It is proposed that any unallocated funds are to be carried forward 
from previous rounds (years) and added to the financial year commencing 1 April 
2019.  

 
6. The community councils will use the criteria set out below for the allocation of this 

funding.  
 

a. Creating opportunities for people from different backgrounds to get on well 
together; (e.g. community cohesion).  

 
b. Establishing projects which treat each other with respect and consideration (e.g. 

being a good neighbour, inter-generational contacts). 
 

  

8
Agenda Item 7



c. Encouraging residents to be responsible for their own neighbourhood (e.g. 
community clean-ups; volunteering initiatives). 

 
d. Specific measures to enhance a neighbourhood’s environment (e.g. increased 

cleaning). 
 

7. A community council may choose to allocate some of their neighbourhoods fund 
resources to their cleaner greener safer capital allocations. 

 
8. Subject to the availability of resources, the neighbourhoods fund may be used to ‘buy’ 

services from the council. 
 
9. As with any executive decision taken by community councils this is subject to the 

council’s existing scrutiny arrangements. 
  
Community impact statement 

 
10. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of involvement of 

local people in the democratic process. Community councils take decisions on local 
matters including environmental improvement and community safety as well as 
consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that affect the area.  

 
11. An explicit objective within community council is that they be used to actively engage 

as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local communities 
on issues of shared mutual interest.  

 
12. The allocation of the 2018/19 Peckham and Nunhead neighbourhoods fund will in the 

main, affect the people living in the Peckham and Nunhead community council area. 
However, in making the area a better place to live and improving life chances for local 
people, Peckham and Nunhead neighbourhoods fund activities will have an impact on 
the whole of Southwark. 

 
13. The neighbourhoods fund is an important tool in achieving community participation 

and cohesion. 
 
14. In fulfilling the above objectives that community councils have of bringing together and 

involving Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been given to 
the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the council to have due 
regard when taking decisions to the need to: 

 
a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited conduct. 
 
b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it  
 
c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic and 

those that do not share it. 
 
15. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 

maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. In this process there are no 
issues that contravene the Equality Act 2010. 

 
16. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further defined in 

s.149 as having due regard to the need of: 
 

  

9



• Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic. 
 

• Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic. 
 

• Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic participate in 
public life or any other activity in which they are under- represented. 
 

• Due consideration was given to equalities impact assessment during the design 
of this awards process and no adverse impact was evident. 

 
Resource implications 
 
17. There are no resource implications. 

 
Consultation 
 
18. The neighbourhoods fund projects may require consultation with stakeholders, 

including the project applicant, local residents and tenants and residents associations 
where applicable. 

 
Financial implications  
 
19. The Peckham and Nunhead neighbourhoods fund has been allocated a total of 

£135,000 for 2018-19.  In addition to this, funds totaling £11,572 remain unallocated 
from previous years’ allocations and thus also available to allocate.  

 
20. It is recommended that community councils set aside some of the unallocated funds 

from previous years in order to prevent an over allocation of funds, as well as act as a 
contingency from which urgent or incidental requests can be funded throughout the 
year. It must also be noted that the unallocated figures reported in the previous 
paragraph represent current best estimates as the 2017-18 funding round is only 
finally over on 31 March 2018. 

 
21. Projects that are unlikely to be completed within the year will be reported to the 

community council and available funding may be allocated to other projects or carried 
over to the following financial year. 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Director of Law and Democracy 
 
22. The Local Government Act 2000 (“the 2000 Act”) gives the Leader the power to 

delegate any executive function to whoever can lawfully undertake the function. The 
allocation of the neighbourhoods fund is an executive function. 

 
23. Community councils are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act and 

executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader. 
 

24. The delegation can be found in paragraph 14, Part 3H of the constitution, which 
enables community councils to approve “the allocation of funds to cleaner, greener, 
safer capital and revenue schemes of a local nature, using the resources and criteria 
identified by the cabinet”. This is therefore a decision that the community council is 
empowered to take. 

 

  

10



25. The Localism Act 2011 gives councils a general power of competence whereby they 
have power to do anything that individuals generally may do. This power can be used 
even if legislation already exists that allows a local authority to do the same thing. 
However the general power of competence does not enable a local authority to do 
anything which is was restricted or prevented from doing under the previous 
legislation.  

 
26. The general power of competence includes the power to: 
 

(a) incur expenditure 
(b) give financial assistance to any person 
(c) enter into arrangements or agreements with any person 
(d) co-operate with or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of any person 
(e) exercise on behalf of any person any functions of that person and 
(f) provide staff, goods, services or accommodation to any person. 

 
27. The provision of funding under the neighbourhoods fund falls within the scope of the 

kind of activities the council can undertake under the general power of competence as 
this includes the power to give financial assistance to any person. 

 
28. In allocating funding under the neighbourhoods fund community councils must have 

regard to the council’s equality duties set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 
The report author has demonstrated how those duties have been considered in the 
body of the report at paragraphs 14, 15 and 16 of the report. 

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Governance  
 
29. The 2018-19 budget allocation for the neighbourhoods fund has been agreed by 

council assembly. It stands at £30,000 per ward and thus £135,000 has been awarded 
to Peckham and Nunhead community council. The report allocates a further £11,572 
from the 2017/18 allocation, this being part of the current unallocated balance. 
 

30. Paragraph 20 notes the need to maintain a contingency element from the funding 
available for urgent or incidental requests. This is a prudent measure to assist in the 
effective running of the neighbourhoods fund. 
 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Neighbourhoods Fund Report 
IDM 

Housing and Modernisation  
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 

Forid Ahmed 
0207 525 5540 

Neighbourhoods Fund 2018/19 
Awards 

Housing and Modernisation 
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 

Pauline Bonner 
0207 525 1019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

11



 

 
APPENDICES 
 
No. Title 
Appendix 1  Peckham and Nunhead Community Council Neighbourhoods Fund 

Applications 2018-19 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL  
 

Lead Officer  Forid Ahmed, Community Councils Team Leader 
Report Author  Gill Kelly, Community Council Officer 

Version  Final  
Dated 5 March 2018 

Key Decision?  Yes 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER  
Officer Title  Comments Sought Comments included  
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes 
Strategic Director of Finance  and 
Governance 

Yes Yes 

Strategic Director of Housing and 
Modernisation 

No No 

Cabinet member  No No 
Date final report sent to the Constitutional Team 5 March 2018 

  

12



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

Livesey South 

907229 Burgess Park Food 
Project 

Compost City Composting is sustainable, good for wildlife and promotes recycling.  It is 
difficult for people to find out how they can compost waste for recycling in the 
garden.  
We want to run 3 Composting workshops over the year to teach local people 
transferable skills in home composting. Residents will learn how to compost 
their own waste using a range of methods suitable for garden, balcony or estate 
and help other family / friends too. 
We also want to run an open day in September bringing everyone together and 
also cover some of our insurance costs. 

£ 
890.00 

907368 Caroline Gardens 
Tenants and 
Residents 
Association 

Caroline 
Gardens 
Summer Party 
for Residents 

Caroline Gardens is an estate of older people, with an average age of 70, many 
of whom live on low fixed incomes and cope with a range of health and mobility 
challenges.  
For that reason, personal recreational and social activities are limited ... so too 
is the opportunity for social inclusion. 
It is vital for the CGTRA to do whatever it can to create and host activities and 
events that encourage residents to get together to enjoy an occasion that 
introduces neighbours to one another in a relaxed and convenient setting. 

 £ 
1,500.00 

APPENDIX 1 

13



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

907368 Ladies of Virtue 
Outreach (LOVO ) 

Ladies Time-
Out day 

The Ladies time-out day is a well-being and skills sharing day for women and 
girls. We plan to have 3 of such days throughout the year , one during each  
season - Autumn, spring and winter. The  day will be an opportunity for 
vulnerable women and girls  to come out of isolation to make friends  as well as  
share skills and learn something new together  in a relaxed, fun-filled 
atmosphere . The day will feature practical activities such as craft & jewellery 
workshop, pampering workshop and wellbeing talks which will help promote 
overall health and wellbeing. We work mostly with BAME women and their 
families, most of whom are experiencing depression and anxiety due to their 
complex issues of unemployment, lack of skills, low self-esteem, domestic 
violence etc. In 2011, It was estimated that at least 3000 women and girls 
mostly of the BAME community experienced one form of abuse or the other 
within the Borough, although the figure is believed to be much larger now as not 
all cases are reported. Due to these ongoing issues, many local women and 
girls suffer from low self-esteem, lack of direction and motivation, anxiety and 
depression, isolation, and under-achievement. The BAME  Women and girls 
currently involved in the group’s activity feel that organising such community 
events will give opportunity for women and girls to connect with other like-
minded women in a safe environment, inspire one another, share their  skills as 
well as success stories of overcoming life experiences.  
The  project  aims to improve an overall wellbeing of the participants as well as 
promote community cohesion. The sessions will enable the participants to 
connect and empower one another, as well as develop new skills which will 
build confidence. The project is new and no other similar activities for women 
are currently been delivered in the neighbourhood. It will link up with other 
wellbeing projects in the area such as the wellbeing gardening events 
organised by the Glengall garden and also with other groups that meet at the 
church hall like the singing group delivered by the Asylum seekers group. The 
sessions will be open to all  women and girls living in the local area. 

 £  
1,900.00 

14



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

898807 Southwark Cleaning 
Services 

Additional 
street cleaning 

Following cuts to street cleaning budgets in 2011-12 financial year, it was 
identified that areas with shops which generated significant disposable waste 
would benefit from an enhanced street cleaning regime. This has been in place 
every year since, paid for originally through the Cleaner, Greener, Revenue 
funding mechanism which has since been incorporated into the 
Neighbourhoods Fund. Maintaining standards of cleanliness in the public realm 
encourages civic pride and creates a positive view of Southwark Council. 

 £ 1987         
shared over 2 
wards  

Cllr 
proposal 

SOUTHWARK 
STREET PASTORS 

SOUTHWARK 
STREET 
PASTORS 

Southwark Street Pastors  are trained volunteers who engage with the 
vulnerable and disadvantaged through a well developed network of 
relationships with the police, local councils and statutory and voluntary 
organisations. In this ward, across Peckham Park Road through Old Kent Road 
to Borough High Street and side roads, we patrol in teams of 3-5 operating from 
Peckham Park Road Baptist Church. Street Pastors engage sensitively with a 
view to caring, listening and helping, and signposting those in need to other 
services. They also identify the most vulnerable and seek to ensure a safe 
passage home or away from trouble. Examples are lone females being shown 
attention by unwanted male admirers or those that require immediate first aid. 
Street Pastors are volunteers who are  trained and supported to fulfil 
specialised ministry on the streets of our borough especially in the night time 
economy. 

 £ 
820.00 

909987 Southwark 
Travellers' Action 
Group (STAG) 

Gypsy Roma 
Traveller 
History Month 

Gypsy Roma Traveller History Month (GRTHM) is a chance to celebrate 
Traveller culture in a context where Gypsy and Traveller communities face 
widespread prejudice and discrimination based on misconceptions about their 
traditional culture and values. In 2018, London's Deputy Mayor for communities 
has committed to celebrate GRTHM and we would like to be part of this bigger 
push to raise the profile of this history month with a small programme of local 
activities including a family fun day, a story telling night and the performance of 
a play celebrating Traveller culture. The event will bring together The Gypsy 
and Traveller communities to promote social cohesion and cultural 
understanding.  It will celebrate and highlight Gypsy and Traveller culture and 
history.  This is beneficial to both Gypsies and Travellers and Southwark's local 
community as a whole as it is an opportunity to celebrate its rich diversity. 

 £ 
2,611.00 

15



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

909781 The  Ernest 
Foundation (TEF) 

Hope of Life Our project focuses on improving the social welfare of very hard to reach 
members of the community living with HIV, to help them improve their quality of 
life. About 150 beneficiaries.  Southwark has the second highest prevalence 
rate of HIV in the UK. In Southwark, there are 2692 people living with HIV. Of 
these 2692, 58% are men who have sex with men and 30% Black African. 39% 
of people tested in Southwark tested HIV positive in Southwark were diagnosed 
late and 23% diagnosed very late. We will organise a weekly meeting for the 
members; a platform for the people to share their experience with HIV, and 
information on the development of HIV medicines and alternative caring.  
Training of network members on counselling.  Training of group members on 
Home visits to promote and give counselling, mutual aid and support.  TEF will 
collaborate with stakeholders, from St. Thomas and Guys, Kings College and 
Lewisham hospitals, to promote its work.  We operate an equal opportunity 
policy.  The vital thing is to change understanding, self-esteem and risky 
practices in adults, and catching young people and children over 12 years old. 
The long-term of the project is to ensure that people living with HIV are 
supported and have the right medical and social care and maintain a good 
quality of life and public education. TEF’s educational outreach  work with 
support this by fighting persistent myths about HIV within the community. The 
rate of HIV should then fall, in line with the rest of the country. 

 £ 
4,954.99 

Nunhead

907469 Astbury road Area 
Residents 
Association (aka 
ARARA) 

Commun8ity 
Street Party 

To continue our efforts to maintain the social cohesion we have built up by 
continuing to contact our residents by holding our TRA meetings eleven times 
during the year. Ensuring we keep in contact with residents by displaying 
information in our 4 noticeboards placed strategically around the area. ARARA 
officers make themselves available to residents, giving them advice and 
information about the services available to them from the Council and outside 
organisations such as our local SNT team. We believe everyone benefits from 

£ 
1,799.00 

16



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

our presence in the area. 

910249 Buchan Tenants & 
Residents 
Association 

Nunhead 
Animation 
Club 

This project will bring together young people from the community and over the 
period of 5days sessions will gain skills in storytelling, animation production, 
creative team work and skills in art and craft.  Throughout the production of 
handmade stop-motion animations, young people from Nunhead will be 
supported to express themselves and their communities in beautiful and 
socially meaningful films. Through the workshops, the young people will 
storyboard and write the concept for the animations themselves. They will be 
given freedom to talk about some of the issues that concern them in their own 
community and how these problems can be resolved. The outcomes from the 
discussions will be created into stories via their storyboards and then 
animations. The age range for our project is 5 -14 years. 

£ 
1,500.00 

910339 Buchan Tenants & 
Residents 
Association 

Buchan Family 
Fun Day 

To create an educational and fun day for children with their families in the area 
of benefit namely the Barset Estate and the surrounding streets. It is our stated 
aim to create facilities for community involvement and cohesion.  
We also use the day to promote the TRA 

£ 
1,000.00 

912205 Cossall TRA Cossall 
Cabaret Social 

The "Cossall Cabaret Social" project offers a regular family-friendly event that 
gives our community the opportunity to get together and access various forms 
of Art and Entertainment within a local friendly environment. Following the 
success of the cabarets, the Cossall TRA agreed to apply for more funding.  
With the inclusion of participating local artists and groups, this project will 
benefit at least 100 people from any age groups and background and engage 
them with the arts. The event  takes place late in the afternoon during the week-
end and provide light snacks and refreshments to encourage social gathering 
afterwards. The form and recurrence of the event is a key element to 
consolidate a strong community hub. There will be 6 events over 12 months, 
therefore giving the opportunity for the event to get a reputation and for any 
local residents and artists to take part. We already had participation from local 
artist such story-teller and singer Helen McDonald and there will be a regular 

£ 
4,717.00 

17



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

call out for local writers, poets, spoken word artist, comedians, circus 
performers, puppeteers, as well as a 15min open mic to encourage self-
expression from the participating audience. These events encourage creative 
and artistic resources locally and strengthen a sense of community. 

910475 Friends of Cossall 
Park and Kirkwood 
Nature Reserve 

Grow Cossall 
Gardening 
Support 
Project 

We would like to support disabled gardeners in the estate. We would choose up 
to 5 residents who have been affected by ill health and /or disability to be 
supported.  This would involve funding specialized gardening tools, building 
raised beds, and donating plants and compost. The group would also offer help 
over the gardening year.  Gardeners who love their garden but are unable to 
maintain it , due to their disabilities, will be enabled by this support. Our remit is 
to give assistance and also to encourage independence. We will launch the 
project with a community event, called the Grow Cossall Green Day. This event 
will include  food, music, gardening activities and outdoor cooking 
demonstrations. This will bring the community together and engender a 
inclusive spirit on the  estate. 

£ 
1,000.00 

910187 Friends of Nunhead 
Cemetery 

Messages, 
Medals, and 
Memorials 

The benefit the community will be:  
- A public art exhibition commemorating the huge contribution of Colonial 
Troops during the First World War - Black Soldiers, Indian Soldiers, Gurkhas 
Soldiers, Chinese Labourers, Irish Soldiers, South African Solders 
- To tell the story of their recruitment before the war, the heroism and 
commendation during the war, and how they are memorialised after the war 
- Also the Conscious Objectors contribution to the war effort and how they were 
treated for their beliefs 
- To make Colonial First World War history available through a combination of 
artworks, personal histories, and historical documents and artefacts 

£ 
1,300.00 

909295 Link Age Southwark Communities 
Reducing 
Social Isolation 
for Older 
People 

We are seeking funds to pay for tutors and to recruit, induct, support and retain 
5 volunteers from the local community to provide volunteer transport and help 
to deliver 2 activity groups to benefit 40 older people in the Nunhead ward.  
The groups are based in St. Mary's Church and Lime Tree House and take 
place weekly, lasting two hours. They promote physical health and well-being 
through gentle exercise with an experienced tutor and provide social 
interaction, friendship and mental stimulation. The groups are co-ordinated by 

£ 
6,365.00 

18



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

paid staff who also attends both groups and is supported by dedicated 
volunteers who help ensure groups run smoothly, by setting up the room, 
serving refreshments and reminding attendees with memory problems that the 
group is taking place.  Our volunteer drivers provide escorted transport for 
those who can't travel alone ensuring that older people are able to remain 
active and engaged in their community and can participate in activities  
outside the home.  
Our services are needed because older people are particularly vulnerable to 
social isolation and loneliness as their mobility reduces, health deteriorates and 
family and peers move away or die. Over half of all older people consider the 
television as their main form of company and loneliness brings risks of serious 
physical and mental health problems. We are proud of being able to give older 
Nunhead residents the opportunity to exercise and socialise that would 
otherwise be unavailable to them. 

912141 Look Ahead Wellbeing Club This project would aim to create opportunities for our client group to make 
meaningful use of their time, in and out of the hostel in order to improve their 
wellbeing. Joe Richards House is a complex needs 24/7 supported housing 
scheme in which we support those who have experienced homelessness, poor 
mental health, substance misuse and institutionalisation in order to aid them to 
try and re-join the community and improve their independent living skills.  
It is our aim to encourage and support our residents to spend their time 
meaningfully, exploring, contributing to and enjoying their local community. We 
hope that this will promote wellbeing and create a positive attitude towards 
interesting and engaging activities while improving confidence and giving them 
a stake in their local area. 
If our customers are enabled to feel part of society and their local community 
after a period of feeling isolate, we believe they will be further inclined to 
contribute to the community, omit less crime in the local area and also be 
shown that others see them as people rather than a burden or social reject.  
The money applied for would pay for regular funding of this club - contributing 
to travel costs to museums, cinemas, the gym as well as providing recourses 
for in-house cooking club, sewing club, book group and art group. 

£ 
5,000.00 

19



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

It would also allow us to host a Christmas dinner for our residents, some of 
whom are estranged from their families. 

911943 Nunhead Film 
Society 

Nunhead Film 
Society 

Nunhead Film Society’s aim is to make cinema accessible to everyone in 
Nunhead, in two distinct ways. 
The first is through a film-goer perspective, with regular film screenings 
connected by a monthly theme in order to generate interest in the filmmaking 
process, how the same subject can be approached in several different ways 
and the way that cinema has evolved throughout the years. 
The second way is from a film-making perspective, with one-day workshops 
available for everyone that wishes to attend and open to anyone independent of 
ethnicity, age, social background or level of experience (or lack thereof). These 
workshops would range from directing, screenwriting, cinematography, editing, 
etc. This will allow Nunhead Film Society to create a social network to and for 
creative-minded people in Nunhead to get together and not only discuss the 
movies they like, but also the movies they would like to make. Those movies 
would then be shown during our regular film screenings and showcased 
wherever possible. 
This differs from "Peckham and Nunhead Free Film Festival", which is held for 
two weeks every year, since Nunhead Film Society will engage people 
throughout the year, and provide year-round support and guidance for anyone 
who wishes to become a creator, or is already one but is lacking either the 
knowledge or confidence in order to make the next step. 

£ 
5,000.00 

910365 Nunhead's Voice Ivy Club 
(evergreen) 

The project is aimed at over 50s residents of the Lane and Nunhead wards 
(many of them n the 65over bracket). Its aim is to provide wellbeing activities 
and a social interaction platform combating isolation and improving physical 
and mental wellbeing; increasing independence and resilience of the elderly 
local communities. We are to provide free access to appropriate physical 
activities such as chair based exercises and mindfulness and a space for social 
activities combating isolation such as arts and crafts, knitting, peer learning 
around a chosen activity e.g. IT skills.  We will also address issues elderly in 

£ 
4,985.00 

20



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

the community face by bringing external speakers and  workshops based 
around their needs. The Ivy club also aims  being a point of reference in the 
community for connecting the service providers catering for the mentioned 
group with the residents while providing safe and secure environment for 
elderly to address their concerns. We held 2 informational events: a Community 
Action network creation meeting in July in which many of the loneliness issues 
were voiced by elderly community and held a elderly community event in 
September asking community members for their input in the activities that 
would be held at The Green. This application addresses suggestions and 
concerned at those events and is conveying the points across in the form of the 
proposed activities. Another aspect of the grant would enable The Green to be 
specifically open for additional 12 hours a week. 

909377 Nunhead's Voice Ltd Older Peoples 
Celebration 
Day 

We aim to achieve an event where older people have an enjoyable memorable 
day. To provide an opportunity for older people to network and to give people 
who feel isolated and lonely the opportunity to meet with other people and to 
find out what is available for them in their community. To give older people in 
our community the opportunity to have their say in what is happening in the 
area in which they live and to express any concerns they might have about the 
services provided to them. We have held this event annually since 2006 and it 
has proved to be really popular. We are often asked if we could hold the event 
more than once a year and we are told that people look forward to it. We cater 
for a considerable number of very vulnerable elderly, and with the assistance of 
agencies such as Age UK, we facilitate getting them to the venue. 

£ 
1,000.00 

907895 Peckham and 
Nunhead Free Film 
Festival 

Peckham & 
Nunhead Free 
Film Festival 

There were 71,552 residents living in the Peckham and Nunhead Community 
Council (Census 2011). Peckham and Nunhead has the highest proportion of 
benefit claimants in the Borough (17%) above the national average of 14%. Our 
free events are accessible to everyone in the community. Cinema ticket prices 
have risen over 25% in the past 5 years and gone far above inflation over the 
past 30. The cost of taking a family of four to the cinema which may be £50 or 
more and taking the same family to a similar outdoor film experience run by a 
commercial company would cost around £95. 
Peckham and Nunhead Free Film Festival is as much about community as it is 

£ 
10,475.00 

21



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

about film. Using the power of film to cross boundaries, raise awareness and 
bring people together. The festival is entirely run by volunteers with a 
commitment to the SE15 area. Our events allow people to discover new 
community venues and resources too, watch a film in a park, shop or 
community space is an opportunity to experience venues in new ways, and to 
celebrate SE15. Our aims are: 
• Community cohesion : bringing together a wide range of local residents and
local groups (reflecting the diverse demographic of the area) through film 
screenings 
• Skills development: run projection workshops and filmmaking
• Intergenerational working: bringing together people of different ages with a
shared interest in films 
• Support local filmmaking talent: We provide opportunities for filmmakers to 
reach wider audiences 

911800 Peckham Coal Line 
w FoCP&KNR 

Celebrate 
Community 
Collaboration. 

To celebrate the results of the feasibility study and further engage the 
community in Peckham Coal Line, (a project supported by all sectors of the 
community via their funding and contributions to date for the feasibility study). 
To begin the construction of the Line we will organise Spring, Summer, Autumn 
& Winter events. In the Kirkwood Reserve, (a very popular site, which many do 
not know of), introducing the local environment with its benefits to all.  
We aim to involve all local residents by continuing to provide platforms for the 
community to skill-share. The range of activities planned will enable everyone 
to take part regardless of age and ability. Additionally the popularity of our 
events has generated requests for repeats and suggestions for additional 
activities. 
The range of events will include face painting, music (provided by local 
residents), circus skills, Tea and Beer Tent, (Coal Line cakes, Coal Line beer,) 
Pickling Penny (foraging) Bee Urban, Woodcraft Group, John Donne Choir. Bug 
Hunts, plant sales, Coal Line walks and bike rides: Something for everyone. 
This will provide ongoing collaboration to ensure the Coal Line will be delivered 
by local people for local people 

£ 
2,430.00 

22



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

911608 Southwark Walking 
Sports Club 

Southwark 
Walking Sports 
Club 

Southwark Walking Sports Club builds on the success of the unique Millwall 
Walking Sports for Older People Programme which has run for two years. It 
supports older people and those with two or three limiting long term health 
conditions, dementia, mental health difficulties, limited mobility or those who are 
inactive, to stay fit and healthy. The two hour weekly activities mean older 
people can meet other people while having fun, stimulating the mind, and, 
developing balance and hand eye coordination. It helps a target audience that 
would not otherwise be active or connected. Before and after each activity, the 
group talk over refreshments thus reducing stress, isolation and loneliness. We 
wish to develop the activity as follows: Create a club run by and for older people 
with a walking sports session in every community council area. Work with local 
groups to promote the sessions. Work with volunteers to support travel 
arrangements. Develop links with the Dame Kelly Holmes Trust and Leonard 
Cheshire to source volunteers and work placement apprentices. Develop links 
between the groups with an annual walking sports tournament at Millwall FC. 
Support participants to add other sessions such as free swim and gym or other 
types of walking sport such as football or netball. Include monthly health talks 
followed by a light lunch. Make referrals as necessary to statutory and non 
statutory partners 

£ 
5,000.00 

912838 TRA taster Fun Day 
(indiv) 

Family Fun 
Day 

I would like to plan a family fun day, The aim of the project is to bring families 
and friends of the local neighbourhood closer together and also give individuals 
especially children an opportunity to express their talent in a fun loving 
environment.  
I believe this is needed as I have noted there is not many events for children to 
take part in around the area and I am not aware of any similar event which has 
taken place since living in this local area.  II also believe this is a great 
opportunity for individuals to make friends and network in order to progress in 
other areas of interest. 
I believe in working collaboratively with others, my aim would be to have a 
mixture of activities taking part on the day such as: Face painting, Bouncy 
castle, Talent show, Food/refreshments, Designing T-shirts, music for all to 
enjoy, and sport activities.  I would ideally like this project to take part next year 

£ 
795.00 

23



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

during Easter period or early summer as it will take a few months to plan and 
organise efficiently and also get positive feedback from others who may share 
an interest in taking part. 

910530 Westminster House 
Youth Club 

Continuing to 
bridge the gap 

We have previously received funds to bring older and younger people in the 
community together and also to equip young people with skills to make them 
responsible citizens. There is a mistrust between the generations which we 
have started to address and we want to build on the positive relationships that 
have started to emerge between the club members and older people by 
continuing our lunch events. We want to continue to deliver wheelchair sports.  
Contact with older residents has enhanced young peoples understanding of 
disability as many are wheelchair users and or have Alzheimers etc., we want 
to continue to raise awareness of disability issues for our young people  
Additionally we want to continue to develop our programme to give our young 
people leadership and group skills which will in turn make them better citizens. 
We plan to run an outdoor activities residential trip for 40 young people and 
also to offer purposeful holiday activities to occupy young people at times of 
greatest risk for young people becoming involved in the criminal justice system, 
either as victims or as perpetrators. 

£ 
9,660.00 

CGS 
912728 

Cossall Estate 
Tenants and 
Residents 
Association 

Cleaner 
Cossall Estate 

Problems with rubbish at Cossall estate looks untidy, unclean and suffers from 
pests Frequent fly tipping, dumping rubbish bags on walkways Install Wheelie 
bins and bin stores. Cleaner Cossall estate. Residents will be able to take out 
trash anytime and have somewhere to put it instead of dumping on walkways.  

£ 
3,000.00 

911931 South London 
Gallery 

Art Assassins We are seeking funding towards the Art Assassins, our weekly forum for local 
14-21 year-olds, to explore the history of the Peckham Experiment, a health 
movement which ran from the Pioneer Health Centre (1925-50) in Peckham 
Ward. Meeting every Tuesday (5-7pm) young people (1/3 of whom are from 
Peckham & Nunhead neighbourhood) collaborate with artists to develop 
exhibitions and events for other young people and the wider community. They 
will build on their research into the Peckham Experiment’s connections between 
creativity, health and wellbeing, and how its pioneering aims relate to their own 
lives. There is minimal other regular, free arts provision for local teenagers; we 

£ 
4,916.00 

24



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

have experience in engaging disadvantaged young people in projects that have 
a long-term positive impact on their lives. The project aims to improve 
participants’ personal and social skills and pathways to employment. 
The weekly sessions will include:  
-on site research at The Pioneer Health Centre, a bespoke building designed 
for The Peckham Experiment in 1935 on St. Mary’s Road, SE15, now private 
housing; 
-Oral History Training workshops to develop skills around gathering stories from 
local people who took part in the Peckham Experiment; 
-visiting the Wellcome Library to look at material artefacts, e.g. photographs, 
letters etc. relating to the Peckham Experiment; 
-an exhibition/ youth takeover of the SLG showcasing the outcomes of their 
research;  
-contributing pieces of writing to a blog. 

Peckham

911875 Bells Gardens 
Tenant & Resident 
Association 

STEP UP & 
STEP IN - 
CONTINUED 

Bells Gardens Estate strives to engage our residents with constructive activities 
that not only motivate Adults and Children with projects that promote 
participation.  Our Keep Fit Classes and Foot Ball for the youth   and New this 
year Men's Foot Ball creating cohesion and building relationships. The 
programs funded by Southward have created well being in our community and 
a strong awareness of a health and vigour among our adult residents. 
The Sewing Classes have by far allowed the ladies, and a few men,  who have 
come to class, an opportunity to connect, support and engage with one another 
as they have worked on their projects... This has giving residents a sense of 
community, building friendships which has also allowed for more community 
participation. 

 £ 
2,230.00 

25



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

912037 Bells Gardens TRA Screen printing 
workshop 

We propose to hire artist David Henckel to come and teach screen printing.  
This will take place over three classes to cover designing the prints, converting 
the designs into screens and printing the screens onto t shirts. The aim is to 
provide local residents with the opportunity to try their hand at a creative skill 
and come away with a beautiful creation to show for it. 

 £ 
1,260.00 

908482 COPEF Training 
Skills 

Youth 
Together 
Project 

The project aim is to connect with different young people age under 21, 
communities, the project will together highlight how to support young people 
and help them to grow together to fight to resolve the issues that have big 
impact in our community, environment, economic, knife crime: 
Engaging and promoting positives activities for young people.  
Creating a place and opportunity for young people and family to learn and 
develop. 
Contribute into community safety programmes by keeping young people away 
from trouble and hugging out on streets and address issues of knife crime and 
employment. 
To achieve this, we are going to run series of youth engagement programme 
which develop a direct contact and address issues / needs of young people in 
our community.  
Running number of the workshops, training support, counselling and life skills 
performance programmes which offer opportunity for local youth to get involved 
in volunteering and learning different tasks and as well as to follow up their big 
outcome: 
12 Wks. series of Employability skills and Job search support workshop.  
10 Wks. of Learning practice skills into Video editing and website design skills.  
7 Wks. of Youth Safety and counselling: face to face and group support.  
8 Wks. of Youth to discover the source of mental health (Well-being support). 
2 Days of summer trips to help youth get away from the area, learn and gain 
new environment knowledge. 
8 Wks. of summer engagement programmes. 
5 Wks. of Youth Network. 

 £ 
4,995.00 

26



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

909713 Everywoman's 
Centre 

Everywoman's 
Centre 

The project aims to provide a safe space where women from all ethnic 
backgrounds come together to meet new people, improve English skills, learn 
employability & life skills and gain a better understanding of the local culture in 
order to lead an independent life. We surveyed women in the community and 
found that many living in Peckham and Nunhead were not in education or 
employment, at risk of not being able to remain in education or employment and 
experiencing social isolation. These included young parents, single mothers, 
women over 50 and victims of domestic violence. There has been an increase 
in immigration from women of poor ethnic backgrounds and their lacks of skills 
has created a great barrier for employment. The majority of these women are a 
considerable distance from the job market and have a number of serious 
barriers to employment including: 
-Isolation 
-Lack of skills 
-Low self-esteem 
-Low participation in community affairs and group activities 
-Lack of communication 
-Lack of support 
-Low Literacy 
-Long term unemployment and background of multi-generational worklessness 
Everywoman's Centre hopes to overcome these barriers through ESOL, advice 
sessions and sewing classes. For those who complete the course and would 
like to start their own business, we provide specialist support on business start-
up, supporting the women throughout the process. We own over 35 sewing 
machines and 3 industrial overlocks. Each student learns on an individual 
machine in class. 

 £5,000 

908687 Gloucester Grove 
Estate TMO 

International 
Trip to France 
or Belgium 

The TMO aims to organise a subsidised trip to France or Belgium.  The trip will 
be accessible to residents from the our community as well as those from the 
immediate surroundings.  Our aim is to bring the community together and in so 
doing offer an opportunity to residents to venture beyond their usual horizon.  
This initiative is designed to support inclusiveness as oppose to the perception 
of the UK's  alienation from the wider European community derived from 

 £ 
1,700.00 

27



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

ongoing Brexit talks. 

908720 Gloucester Grove 
Estate TMO 

2018 Summer 
Fun Day 

The annual fun day at Gloucester Grove Estate is an opportunity to bring 
together residents on the estate from varying backgrounds to celebrate summer 
and our diverse community.  Its an opportunity to share the community's 
successes during the course of the preceding year.  A number of providers 
which are of interest to the community will be invited to attend e.g. credit union; 
health and wellbeing. 

 £ 
2,495.00 

908765 Gloucester Grove 
Estate TMO 

Christmas 
Festive Lunch 
for Seniors - 
2018 

Amongst the TMO's community are a healthy group of elderly residents who will 
benefit from this special Christmas lunch at a period leading up the Christmas 
festivities.    This is a period when great emphasis is placed on the family unit.  
As such the TMO uses this period to focus on this group within the community - 
at a time when some are unlikely to have loved ones around them for an 
important festive date within the annual calendar. 

 £ 
3,140.00 

912083 Hidaya Women's 
Association 

Youth 
activities, 
homework  
club 

Hidaya Women's Association is a group for women made by mother's to 
support one another. We are based in Camberwell, but many of our members 
live in Peckham and feel that they lack activities for their children in their 
neighbourhood. Many of the mothers have taken inspiration from our range of 
activities and would like something similar to be available to their children 
Because of this, we have decided that we would like to create a youth group in 
Kelly Avenue Park. We are asking for funding to run activities including but not 
limited to sport and karate clubs as well as a homework club. 

 £ 
5,850.00 

912159 iiChild Enterprise 
Against Crime 

Our aim: to provide a safe place for young people during the summer.  we steer 
them away from gun and knife crime into productive outings, activities and 
business ideas were they can earn a legal living. It is needed as it is affordable 
for low income parents.  Those on free school meals benefit from daily meals. 
The community benefits by their involvement, it prevents the youths loitering on 
the estate, reduces confrontation with the police. We invite the police in to 
encourage positive relationships. 

 £ 
7,040.00 

28



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

911605 LEADERS OF 
TOMORROW (LOT) 

(LOT ) Finding 
Solutions to 
Knife Crime 

The Leaders of Tomorrow (LOT) was established in 2002 to raise the academic 
achievements of children and young people through our weekly structured after 
school leadership and mentoring programme. The benefits/outcomes that we 
want to achieve are:  to build on last year’s outstanding results by continuing to 
have a highly trained group of young people from BME communities who will be 
able to make changes in their own lives, inspire others through their 
achievements and help  find to find solutions to the endemic knife crime and 
acid attacks that are wreaking  havoc in London.  
We want to continue to build on the successes of last year’s work whereby 8 
aspiring young leaders attended the October 2016 Business Education 
conference in New Orleans, Louisiana. They participated in key training 
workshops on:  
a) Embracing excellence
b) Embracing failure
c) Creating your legacy
d) Making change happen
e) Career fair and tour of Xavier and Tulane universities
We are extremely proud that two of the students who attended the conference, 
gained full scholarships to pursue their A’ Levels at Westminster and Rugby 
Independent school.  
LOT has recently joined the Council’s newly formed Knife Crime Network to find 
solutions to the problem.  The stakeholders include, the Met Police, Southwark 
Youth Offending Services and Southwark Youth Forum.  The group will be 
working closely with Crime stoppers. Fearless and Safer Neighbourhood 
Teams. 

 £ 
5,000.00 

911896 Lindley Estate 
Tenants & Residents 
Association (LETRA) 

Peckham 
Young People 
Count 

LETRA aims to encourage young people (16-25yrs) to become more involved 
in the decision-making and planning of LETRA activities. LETRA has seen a 
growing rise in youth crime and anti-social behaviour in its neighbourhood. The 
increase in stabbings in the Peckham area, often involving young males from 
African & Caribbean backgrounds, has also affected our neighbourhood.   
LETRA would like to organise 3 youth events, which are planned with and 
delivered by young people. These events will highlight the positive attributes of 

 £ 
2,050.00 

29



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

young people working together with younger and older residents to improve 
their local area, increase social interaction between residents' demonstrate that 
young people can be responsible and reduce the fear of crime in our 
neighbourhood.   
These events will also provide young people with a better understanding of how 
a TRA works and encourage them to participate in meetings and possibly to 
join the Committee,  as stated in our Constitution 

911941 MADE2BMORE MADE2BMORE The MADE2BMORE project’s main aim is to inspire young people to want to 
achieve their potential in life. It is a grassroots initiative solely created for the 
benefit of the local community. It was started as a response to the feeling that 
there is still not enough being done to tackle issues that young people face in 
their area. Genuine change within the borough needs to start with smaller, local 
communities.  MADE2BMORE will seek to tackle social segregation, age 
separation and other community-specific issues. It will also seek to improve the 
self-confidence of the young people taking part in the project whilst promoting 
local talent. Its fresh, original approach will elevate Peckham’s young people. 
The project will take place in the form of an event that will occur three to four 
times a year. Peckham has a unique and diverse population and this project 
aims to celebrate its multicultural foundation in all its glory. The events will 
provide young people with the opportunity to have a platform whilst also 
bringing together different age groups. It will host performances, panel 
discussions and inspirational speakers. This project is needed in order to 
provide a much-needed opportunity for young people to identify and start 
addressing some of the issues that they face. It will also showcase talent in the 
local community and allow for life stories and experiences to be shared 
amongst the old and young. 

 £ 
1,150.00 

911665 Millwall Community 
Foundation 

Southwark 
Walking Sports 
Club 

Southwark Walking Sports Club builds on the success of the unique Millwall 
Walking Sports for Older People Programme which has run for two years. It 
supports older people and those with two or three limiting long term health 
conditions, dementia, mental health difficulties, limited mobility or those who are 
inactive, to stay fit and healthy. The two hour weekly activities mean older 
people can meet other people while having fun, stimulating the mind, and, 

 £ 
5,200.00 

30



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

developing balance and hand eye coordination. It helps a target audience that 
would not otherwise be active or connected. Before and after each activity, the 
group talk over refreshments thus reducing stress, isolation and loneliness. We 
wish to develop the activity as follows: Create a club run by and for older people 
with a walking sports session in every community council area. Work with local 
groups to promote the sessions. Work with volunteers to support travel 
arrangements. Develop links with the Dame Kelly Holmes Trust and Leonard 
Cheshire to source volunteers and work placement apprentices. Develop links 
between the groups with an annual walking sports tournament at Millwall FC. 
Support participants to add other sessions such as free swim and gym or other 
types of walking sport such as football or netball. Include monthly health talks 
followed by a light lunch. Make referrals as necessary to statutory and non 
statutory partners 

909567 Parent Skills2Go Financial and 
personal 
development 
training  for 
families 

To provide training courses that will promote the financial capacity and improve 
the personal confidence of families to enable them: 
access services, get into work and training help with managing money.  
Family fortunes (financial Capacity) is a preventative programme aimed at 
helping families improve their money skills before they reach crisis point. The 
current national context shows a continuous decline in income particularly for 
families who are receipt of benefit. Moreover, families provide the most 
important opportunity for children to see, learn and talk about money. 
The personal development programme is aimed at supporting parents and 
carers n realising their potential and experience positive change. This has 
become necessary because the result from a number of evaluations have 
shown that families with young children have difficulty in knowing what to do to 
get back into work or training after having children; they may want a career 
change or just need to develop their confidence. 
Again, in light of the current climate, there is so much pressure on families 
emotionally, physically, and financially. Families with language barriers, mental 
health, housing challenges and living in isolation  may also be limited in their 
understanding of how to access services and may need support in building their 
confidence.  

 £ 
5,650.00 

31



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

909736 Peckham Platform Youth Platform With the generous support of the Neighbourhoods Fund, Youth Platform has 
delivered over 31 creative sessions, engaged 15 professionals, delivered 4 
exhibitions and events, with 142 attendees and 31 young people in the last 
year. Our double figure waiting list demonstrates demand and that the project 
responds to the expressed needs of the participants. Recent images from can 
be seen here: http://youthplatform.tumblr.com 
Our public art project is the subject of a Cleaner Greener Safer Application. If 
successful, artists delivering this project will be running sessions with the Youth 
Platform.  With sustained support for from the Neighbourhoods Fund in 2018-
19, we will continue creative provision for disadvantaged young people in 
Peckham; engage young people creatively; address increasing social 
inequalities and  access arts and culture within the context of the wider 
regeneration of Peckham.  
Since 2015 Youth Platform has run bi-weekly sessions engaging a core group 
aged 13 – 19yrs. Our ambition for the future is to build on the recommendations 
of our external evaluation to introduce weekly sessions, increase attendance, 
explore intergenerational work with older residents and bring in accreditation 
through offering Arts Award.  
Peckham Platform is currently in transition, having moved out of the gallery 
space on Peckham Square, we are growing our programme and organisation 
and will move into a permanent home as part of Southwark's Library Square 
development. 

 £ 
4,992.00 

909761 Salem Academy of 
Music 

Togetherness The project is designed to break the barrier of social isolation and anti-social 
behaviour suffered by the disadvantaged young people in Peckham.  
It will improves the cordial relationship between the young people and help 
them to work together. 
This will serves as a means of improving the trainees’ self-confidence, self-
discipline and self-esteem. 
It will enables the trainees to be of benefit to their communities through 
displaying of their skills in musical concerts etc.  
Peckham in Southwark is one of the most deprived area in London with 
disadvantaged young people that suffer from social isolation and anti-social 

 £ 
4,250.00 

32



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

behaviour. According to Metropolitan Police report in September 2017, 
Peckham crime rate was one of the highest in Southwark, 
https://maps.met.police.uk/  This project will reduce the crime rate by 
meaningfully engaging the young people in profitable musical training. 
Also, the need for these activities have been gathered through feedback from 
the past and current users, parents and people in the community. 
The enormous benefits to Peckham community are through engaging the 
young people in meaningful and productive activities thus breaking the 
challenges of social isolation and anti-social behaviour due to effective bonding 
and team work. It will result in taking the young people off-street and crime by 
giving them a meaningful life.  
This will foster cordial relationships and networking between the trainees and 
the people within the community. 

912023 SOMALI 
INTEGRATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT 
ASSOCIATION(SIDA) 

PARENTS 
NETWORK  
PROJECT 

The Parents network Project is a self-help group  in the LB Southwark   who 
have been meeting for the last view months in regular bases to discuss issues  
of concern such as knife crime, low educational achievements, health and well 
being of the children and parents. 
The aim of the project is to help local families  to feel safe, active and health 
primarily during school holidays. 
The project will help families(150 people) of children  and parents to benefit 
from healthy living programme  so that children and parents  to live a healthy 
life in a way  they feel safer and be active and have a fun. 
To do the above we will provide themes workshop, seminars, as well as trips for 
parents and their children. 

 £ 
4,690.00 

911868 Sumner Residents 
Association 

Keep the Spirit 
of Christmas 
Alive 

Our aim is to bring together everyone by welcoming all to the Annual Xmas 
Peckham Christmas Tree light up.  Children from local schools. shops. and 
members of the local community & Councillors all working together to keep the 
spirit of Christmas alive in Peckham. 
Local Children we would encourage to join in and sing carols around the 
Christmas Tree.  The shopkeepers will assist with the refreshments for this 
event and the local community will help at the event. 
In previous years 200+ have attended this event. 

 £ 
1,965.00 

33



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

We welcome all members of the community regardless of Religion, Age, Sex, 
ethnicity photos in the local press validate this. 
The event brings a positive impact on the local community by bringing people 
together and brings a sense of belonging and respect for our local community. 
The Event is a one day event in early December 2018 

911765 TEARDUSK DIGITAL DROP 
IN 

Regular workshops giving the community the opportunity to collaborate, 
develop business skills & express themselves creatively learning digital skills 
such as marketing and content creation, whilst improving digital inclusion, 
teaching local residents how to access information online. Short films will also 
be created with local entrepreneurial talents giving the community tips on how 
to start your own project. 
The need is evident from feedback from council colleagues, local businesses 
and young people. Community council meetings also reinforce the need to 
equip members of the community with key digital skills and members of the 
community to be more socially integrated. 
Targets & Milestones: 
Bringing community together to collaborate & showcase their work 
Develop a workshop where members of the local community and small 
businesses can gain support. 
Produce digital content which can be shared online to reach the wider 
community 
Positive outcomes include:  
Educational films about Peckham entrepreneurs created. 
Local businesses & Young People gaining access to digital training and 
support.  
Diverse members of the community integrated, coming together to learn  
Other projects include Skills for Life, our project differs as we have a stronger 
focus on digital training. We also see this as an opportunity to work with 
organisations such as LYST who tackle youth unemployment; our aim will be to 
help develop their young people's soft skills. 

 £ 
3,000.00 

34



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

907663 The Friends of Kelly 
Avenue Park 

Community 
Fun Day 

The community fun day will celebrate the achievement of local families in 
reclaiming the park for use by the residents of Peckham ward. It will bring 
together people from a diverse range of ethnic groups and organisations, who 
are linked by their increasing engagement and sense of ownership of the park. 
It is a genuine neighbourhood event, strengthening positive relationships within 
the community. It also provides useful networking opportunities, bringing 
communities and organisations together for mutual support. 

 £ 
2,250.00 

912373 Willowbrook Tenant 
Management 
Organisation 

Pollinator 
Gardens 

To build a strong sense of community and inclusion, to encourage team work in 
our younger residents, help them learn new skills that will be of benefit in future. 

 £ 
2,000.00 

Cllr 
proposal 

Southwark Cleaning 
Services 

Additional 
street cleaning 

Following cuts to street cleaning budgets in 2011-12 financial year, it was 
identified that areas with shops which generated significant disposable waste 
would benefit from an enhanced street cleaning regime. This has been in place 
every year since, paid for originally through the Cleaner, Greener, Revenue 
funding mechanism which has since been incorporated into the 
Neighbourhoods Fund. Maintaining standards of cleanliness in the public realm 
encourages civic pride and creates a positive view of Southwark Council. 

 £ 1987         
shared over 2 
wards  

from 
CGS 

Resident suggestion Do and don’t 
stickers for 
recycling bins 

Arrange for recycling instruction stickers on all wheelie bins 

908895 The Welcome 
Singers 

The Welcome 
Singers--choral 
singing for the 
elderly 

Singing together enhances concentration, promotes a sense of satisfaction and 
well being, and research shows it to help with depression, stress and 
loneliness. Many long lasting friendships are formed, and it is thought to delay 
the progress of Alzheimers disease. We have four choir members with this 
condition. We also sing in Care Homes and public occasions if invited. 

 £ 
3,140.00 

912018 Inspiring DJs Inspiring DJs The aim of inspiring DJs is to encourage, motivate and empower people at risk, 
to consider hobbies or careers in music via DJing through a series of DJ 
workshops.  The goal is to facilitate, nurture and teach them the fundamentals 
and mind-set of deejaying and transferable skills required to work in the 
industry, including communicating, negotiating, goal setting and evaluating.  
We will incorporate professional coaching into the project also to effectively 

 £ 
4,794.00 

35



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

motivate and encourage them to identify, plan and work towards (short, medium 
and long term) goals.  
Benefits for all (young + old) include: 
1. Spending their time doing something constructive, and earning multiple 
streams of income 
2. Have a safe space to learn and participate in a safe and possible future 
career activity. 
3. Motivating, inspiring and boosting confidence: identifying successful DJs 
locally & globally 
4. Create a supportive, positive mental attitude and harmonious atmosphere, 
where everyone’s skills, learning techniques, goals & visions are valued, 
respected and freely expressed 
5. Introduce the business aspect of DJ'ing, business planning, strategies for 
bookings, marketing and branding self effectively online and offline 

 

Peckham Rye 

910524 34th Camberwell 
Scouts 

100th 
celebratory 
family camp 

The 34th Camberwell Scout group (of 66 beavers, cubs and scouts) is 
celebrating 100 years since its inception and we’d like to mark this centenary 
with a family camp for all.  
Scouting offers not only badge work, fun and life skills, but also builds 
confidence and a sense of responsibility in children – all of which benefit their 
families and their immediate community. Camping trips take children out of the 
city to experience nature, adventure and challenges and build new skills, 
learning by doing and thinking for themselves.  
Since not all families in the area served by this scout group can afford to send 
their children on camping events, we thought it would make a fitting celebration 
of our 100th birthday if we could take all beavers, cubs and scouts and their 
families for a weekend of camping in our district’s campsite in Westerham, 
Kent. What used to be called “The Deptford Campsite” is now known as 

 £             
5,025.00  

36



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

Waylands and is run by Southwark Scouts – one of five borough-based Scout 
Districts.  
As well as being a celebration, the event also offers us the chance to guarantee 
the future camping possibilities for our scout group since all equipment 
purchased, to bolster our existing supplies, for this 100th birthday family camp 
will be able to be used for future generations and throughout the year at regular 
and district camps, both at the Fort in Sydenham and at Waylands, Westerham. 

900358 Friends of Peckham 
Rye Park 

Friends of 
Peckham Rye 
Park Summer 
Fete 2018 

The annual fete brings together the local communities of Peckham, Nunhead 
and Dulwich. It is a unique event that gives a sense of identity and belonging to 
the many and diverse users of the Park and Common. 
It is a tried and tested event that brings enjoyment to members of the 
community of all ages. The dog show, children’s fancy dress and traditional 
games (coconut shy, sack races, etc.) are opportunities for local residents to 
participate and show off their talents and their pets. All profits go towards 
supporting projects within the Park and Common; the community from those 
areas all benefit from the event and our support of projects. 
The fete takes 4 or 5 months to prepare and actively involves a large number of 
people including stall holders from local community organisations as well as 
independent producers and companies, volunteers who help prepare and run 
the activities and local businesses who promote the event. 

 £             
1,877.00  

907712 London Senior 
Social 

Fall Prevention 
and Strength 
and Balance 
Classes 

London Senior Social aims for this project is to improve strength and balance of 
older people in order to combat the high-level of fall s among older people.   A 
survey conducted by London Senior Social among  older people in South East  
Southwark indicated a very high number of people a feeling isolated and lonely 
and are struggling from social and Economic Hardship.  Research from NHS - 
Recognition of Mental Health Problems in Older People attribute some of these 
issues as contributors to mental health problems among older people.  
As depression and anxiety are not a normal aspect of aging but can exacerbate 
the effect of physical illness and may prevent rehabilitation.   
London Senior Social have spearheaded this project to improved older people 
mental health through Fall Prevention Strength and Balance to help alleviate 
and improve older people mental health and general well being. 

 £             
3,220.00  

37



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

our outcome to be achieved 
-Improved physical strength and balance. 
-Improved confidence. 
-Improved mental cognitive.  
-Reduce Isolation/Loneliness 
-Reduce Depression/ Anxiety 
-Learned new skills. 
-Developed new and reconnect with friends. 
-Take up other activities within the community. 
-Improve community cohesion increase volunteering opportunities.  
By restoring their confidence we will be improving their mental health and 
resilience to face challenges of daily living. 

907895 Peckham and 
Nunhead Free Film 
Festival 

Peckham & 
Nunhead Free 
Film Festival 

There were 71,552 residents living in the Peckham and Nunhead Community 
Council (Census 2011). Peckham and Nunhead has the highest proportion of 
benefit claimants in the Borough (17%) above the national average of 14%. Our 
free events are accessible to everyone in the community. Cinema ticket prices 
have risen over 25% in the past 5 years and gone far above inflation over the 
past 30. The cost of taking a family of four to the cinema which may be £50 or 
more and taking the same family to a similar outdoor film experience run by a 
commercial company would cost around £95. 
Peckham and Nunhead Free Film Festival is as much about community as it is 
about film. Using the power of film to cross boundaries, raise awareness and 
bring people together. The festival is entirely run by volunteers with a 
commitment to the SE15 area. Our events allow people to discover new 
community venues and resources too, watch a film in a park, shop or 
community space is an opportunity to experience venues in new ways, and to 
celebrate SE15. Our aims are: 
• Community cohesion : bringing together a wide range of local residents and 
local groups (reflecting the diverse demographic of the area) through film 
screenings 
• Skills development: run projection workshops and filmmaking  
• Intergenerational working: bringing together people of different ages with a 

 £           
10,475.00  

38



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

shared interest in films  
• Support local filmmaking talent: We provide opportunities for filmmakers to 
reach wider audiences 

910561 Stepping Stones Gardening 
Sessions at the 
Stuart Road 
Allotments 

We are seeking funding for new weekly gardening sessions at the Stuart Road 
Allotments. These outdoor classes will be for adults with learning disabilities. In 
2016/17 we were awarded a grant from the Southwark CGS fund, and over the 
last year we have installed 8 raised beds at the allotment. Whilst building the 
beds, we trialled a weekday service user session to complement our weekend 
activity and maximise the benefits of the staff time  invested in the build project. 
It was a great success, with service users learning new skills and taking part in 
building the beds. Now that the beds are installed the site is much more  
accessible. We are keen to increase the use of this wonderful space and 
resource, and would like to run regular sessions from spring to autumn of 2018. 
Gardening is an activity that encourages growth in so many ways. It helps with 
confidence, skill learning, communication and social skills, and enjoyment of 
life. When delivering our gardening sessions we benefit greatly from our 
position in a community allotment. We have enjoyed great support from other 
plot holders who often share produce, advice, and encouragement with our 
service users. Adults with learning disabilities suffer great disadvantage and are 
often excluded from activities on basis of their disability. Our allotment project 
offers us the opportunity to challenge this disadvantage and deliver stimulating 
activities that are accessible and safe in a supportive community environment. 

 £             
2,038.00  

912005 J Hartley Extra warden 
patrols for 
Local area 

I would like local councillors to be able to draw on a fund to allocate extra 
community wardens to areas of the ward which suffer anti social or criminal 
behaviour 

 £             
5,000.00  

909326 Link Age Southwark Communities 
Reducing 
Social 
Isolation for 
Older People 

We are seeking funds to recruit, induct, support and retain 6 volunteers from 
the local community to provide volunteer transport and help to deliver 3 
community groups to benefit 50 older, isolated people in the Peckham Rye 
Ward. The groups include yoga, singing and bridge and take place at the Lew 
Evans Sheltered Housing Unit.   
Services are co-ordinated by paid staff who recruit volunteers and match their 

£ 
1,440.00 

39



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

skills and availability to the location, needs and interests of our service users. 
Volunteers make it possible for older people to engage in activities and 
volunteer drivers provide escorted transport for those who can't travel alone, 
ensuring that older people remain active and engaged in their community and 
participate in our groups. 
Our services are needed because older people are particularly vulnerable to 
social isolation and loneliness as their mobility reduces, health deteriorates and 
family and peers move away or die. Over half of all older people consider the 
television as their main form of company and loneliness brings risks of serious 
physical and mental health problems. Our yoga group promotes physical health 
and all groups promote mental stimulation and friendship. Our groups are the 
only social interactions that many of our users have outside the home. By 
bringing people together of all ages and backgrounds, our work promotes a 
stronger, richer and age-friendly local community. 
 

 

The Lane 

909576 Little People's World Easter/Summer 
holiday 
activities 

Our previous holiday activities have highlighted the need for more support with 
families in terms of social, economic  and physical well-being.  Little people's 
World (LPW) is now expanding the holiday activities at another centre - 
Hollydale Children's Centre, Nunhead. Apart from providing activities, trips to 
families during the holidays, Little People's World is also expanding working in 
continuous holistic partnership with a local food bank (Central Southwark 
Community Hub) to provide nutritious meals during the Easter/Summer holiday 
activities sessions. We have evidence from our records that at least 80% of 
families during the holiday period are in need of food. Normally our holiday 
activities take place over a two week period. Due to the high demand for family 
holiday activities Little People's World are now extending the holiday activities 
from 2 week period to three week period which requires more finances to 

 £          
4,630.00  

40



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

successfully run this projects. 
Further more the project provides a platform for parents/carers with young 
children the opportunity to develop their planning and organisational skills 
through the development of holiday activities and trips for vulnerable families. 

912522 Metropolitan Police Peer Mediators 
to work with 
local young 
people 

The aim of the project is to increase youth engagement in the geographical 
area of the Pelican Estate and to understand better the risk of being a young 
person on the estate. Youth knowledge of the issues relating to their safety can 
often be lost to agencies, both statutory and third sector. The Metropolitan 
Police, Southwark, local policing are doing much to improve community 
engagement whilst policing the gang members who not only live on the estate 
but outsiders who seek to damage the community by way of violence and ASB. 
The statistics relating to knife crime and gang violence in and around Peckham 
and The Lane make for  sober reading .The key problems in this area are knife 
enabled robberies, gang activity, serious youth violence and ASB. Historically 
there have been two main areas where the majority of knife enabled robberies 
have occurred, SE15 and SE1.  Rival gangs with current tensions include 
Moscow 17 (Brandon Estate, Comber Grove, John Ruskin Street and 
surrounding areas SE17) and Zone 2 (Pelican Estate, Bells Gardens Estate, 
Rye Lane, Peckham High Street, Queens Road, Southampton Way SE15) 
Recent stabbings in Rye Lane, has led to  groups congregating on the Pelican 
Estate. If we work with young people and their parents or guardians and 
feedback the thoughts and ideas to local police and housing associations, then 
the mistrust between all parties may begin to diminish. 

 £          
4,320.00  

908325 Bags of Taste Bags Of Taste  
Southwark 

We are a charity that aims to bring about dietary behavioural change. We have 
run tried and tested schemes in Hackney (30+) , Islington, City and Southwark. 
We provide free cooking lessons for people  in food poverty and struggling to 
feed themselves well on a budget.  
All of our dishes are tried and tested and  cost less than a £1 per portion and 
 incorporate  2 portions of vegetables per serving. We provide information on 
local shopping and wasting less food. We involve the local community as 
volunteers to prepare ingredients and to support the cooking sessions. Our 
students are a wide mix of people but often vulnerable in terms of social 

 £          
2,550.00  

41



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

isolation . 
We have worked with partner charities to refer participants to our courses 
including Foodbanks,  CAB, Community Fridge, Housing Associations, Health 
Hubs , SLAM  as well as face to face street recruitment including at the Job 
Centre in Peckham. 
We teach , we cook , we eat together and we provide a bag of ingredients to 
take away , at cost  to consolidate the learning. In regard to safeguarding, the 
named person to run the training sessions is a trained experienced Secondary 
School Food teacher with a current DBS check. She has been resident in 
Peckham for over 25 years. 

911839 Black Heroes 
Foundation 

The Story of 
Sam King 

Creating a documentary film, recording the history of an important local 
resident: The first black mayor of Southwark, passenger on the Empire 
Windrush, RAF engineer in the 2nd world war, founder of the West Indian 
Gazette and Notting Hill Carnival.  
The purpose of this film 
a) Making local history easily accessible to local, hard to reach, difficult and 
culturally diverse residents 
b) Raising awareness of Sam’s achievements and so positively impacting 
aspirations, motivation, and pride of individuals, together with community 
cohesion 
c) Provision of training, mentoring and experience in film production thus 
enhancing career development in the film industry for local individuals   

 £          
5,000.00  

912086 Caribb Youth and 
Community 
Association 

SPORT AND 
FUN DAY FOR 
ALL THE 
FAMILY 

We plan to hire sport area at Harris Academy Peckham for one Sport Fun Day, 
promoting netball, and cricket and youth football for young people girls and 
boys. We are seeking to engage disadvantaged communities and young people 
who have had contact with the law and those at risk of joining street gangs.  
The event will target families who do not normally engage in sporting activities 
due to life style and because of cost. We will also have on hand information and 
advice about sporting bodies, requirements and access to local sporting clubs, 
including sport coaching opportunities. It will be a “Fun Day” of sporting 
activities for all the family and community. Activities will include discussing 
groups around setting up and running sports group, some entertainment, 

 £          
2,725.00  

42



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

including sporting skills and fitness workshops. We plan follow up training 
sessions and friendly games. The main beneficiaries are BME families in 
Southwark, mainly Peckham, Nunhead and East Dulwich... The plan is also to 
divert young people from gangs and into organised sport activities.  The aim is 
to provide positive activities/event for local people, which will also create 
opportunities and enjoyment in the futures, such as joining with local clubs, 
making visits to leisure/sporting facilities. The community will benefit by having 
an event they can participate in. We hope a reduce level of anti-social 
behaviour and youth crime and extended community engagement across 
different cultures. 

906779 COMMUNITY IN  
POWER  (CIP) 

Multicultural 
fashion project 

Aiming to promote greater understanding of the Multi-faith dress code for 
women and provides an opportunity for local women to meet, get to know each 
other and stage a women’s fashion parade of Multicultural traditional fashions 
outfits.  The project will conduct twelve weeks cross-cultural education 
workshops for around 52+ women & five weeks of staging a women’s fashion 
parade where Women will be given the opportunity to show to entire community 
the traditional fashions dress code of each faith “colourful Nigerian fashion; the 
traditional Indian clothing for women  the Sari;  hijab and veiling for Muslim; 
Tznius Clothing, Shabbos Robes, Sheitels, and Tiechels for Jewish Women  
and European dress, the adoption of Christianity”.  These women –only 
workshops incorporate a fashion code of each faith group, panel discussion, 
speakers and entertainment in a relaxing setting.  
35% of faith women have described incidences of harassment or open hostility 
from other women in the street, due to what their wear”. Judgments can be 
made without foundation and prejudice thrives. At the same time, we would say 
that Muslims, like Christians and Jews, have allowed the extreme, 
fundamentalist elements among them to become the public voice of their 
religions, defining those religions in the public eye in their terms, thus 
encouraging stereotypes. The time has come to put an end to the negative and 
begin the positive.  
It was developed in an effort to bridge the gap between believers and non-
believers women in Peckham areas. Active participation in interfaith educational 

 £          
3,220.00  43



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

programs helps promote peace by increasing religious literacy and mutual 
respect for people of all faiths and none. 

911644 Cooperative Planters Silent Film 
Festival 

Within our community garden, The Cooperative Planters propose to host during 
the year a series of silent film nights on key nights of the year such as Black 
History Month, International Women's Day and more. The silent film nights are 
designed to help members of the community to enjoy the community garden 
and fully utilise our communal space. 

 £ 
5,200.00 

911733 Copleston Centre New 
notice 
boards and 
signage for 

Copleston 
Centre 

The exterior of our building is looking tired and dated and our notice boards are broken 
and falling apart. One notice board is wooden and is rotten and unusable.  Anecdotally 
we are told people don't realise how much goes on in our building.   New smarter 
noticeboards will present a more inviting and clearly visible frontage for the Centre, to 
encourage members of our local community to take advantage of all the opportunities 
we offer to improve their health and well-being and connect with others across the 
diversity of the community. 

 £ 
5,000.00 
application 
forwarded to 
CGS Fund 

909763 CopTog Cultured 
Peckham 

Our group CopTog actively includes people who have experienced mental 
health difficulties and other people who also might experience isolation, 
including older people.  Cultured Peckham will provide access to a range of 
cultural and social activities in our fabulous area, Peckham and Nunhead.  The 
activities have been chosen by our group's participants after discussion and 
research in the neighbourhood.  We have held special meetings to get local 
people's ideas and asked participants to get involved in writing the application.  
7 members have attended 3 separate meetings and contributed to this 
application and voted on the events outlined below.  Our chosen activities 
include:  Jazz on a Sunday at the Ivy House; View and Food at PeckhamPlex 
and Honest Burger;  Pizza at the Pub at the Gowlett; Theatre at the Bussey 
Building.  Our activities will be those that many locals can't ordinarily afford and 
will bring people together who might not normally spend time together, and 
enhance people's everyday lives and connection with the area. We want to 
improve people's attitudes towards each other and broaden people's 
experiences and horizons. Our ethos is to encourage kindness and tolerance 

 £ 
1,095.00 

44



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

and to develop a community that is more inclusive of people with mental health 
difficulties. 

910509 COVO Connecting 
Voices 

Creative 
Together 

The project aims to increase confidence, self-esteem and sense of purpose 
among elderly people to address isolation and loneliness. Loneliness among 
older adults is a major public health problem associated with poor social 
participation. A reminiscence project done in spring 2017 with a group of elderly 
people in Peckham showed that elderly people especially those affected by 
mobility or mental health difficulties are more likely to become isolated and to 
lose motivation for social interaction.  Our project will take the participants 
through a journey of re-enacting experiences from their youth. Each session 
includes gentle physical exercise that allows participants to join in according to 
their individual physical ability. Participants will learn to make music using 
acoustic instruments and an Ipad.  They will also learn basic dance steps using 
rhythms and music from their youth. The group will work towards a final 
music/dance piece and a short video of the process culminating in a final 
performance for their relatives and members of the local community. Taking 
part in this program will enable the participants to engage in physical and 
mental exercise to increase their mobility and participation. The very nature of 
the activity will revitalize their spirit and motivation. Working together in a group 
will facilitate socialization and develop confidence. The final presentation to 
friends and family will boost self esteem and encourage stronger connections 
with the community. 

 £ 
2,150.00 

909732 Fat Macy's Fat Macy's Fat Macy's gives homeless Londoners living in temporary accommodation the 
opportunity to gain work experience & save for their own homes. Now, we are 
opening our first restaurant. 
Fat Macy’s works with young Londoners living in temporary accommodation. A 
roving restaurant, we provide a pathway to independent living by inviting our 
trainees chefs to host pop-up supper club events across the capital. 
Fat Macy's creates a direct pathway from hostel to home: from in-hostel 
training, to work experience at our supper club events. Those who volunteer 

 £ 
1,000.00 

45



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

over 150 hours are eligible to apply for a housing deposit grant to move into 
their own flat. 
Now Fat Macy's needs a permanent home - we plan to renovate an old building 
to create a cafe and restaurant, complete with a professional commercial 
kitchen for training and events. We will also create a social enterprise hub with 
co-working space, complete with events showcasing the best social enterprises 
in London.  
We will work with local community groups and local businesses to provide a 
new space for local residents, while helping those living in homelessness find a 
route to more permanent accommodation. 

Cllr 
proposal 

Friends of Belham & 
Belham PS 

Belham Air 
Quality Project 

This project is working with local staff and parents and pupils of Belham school 
We are the parents group. In addition the Head Teacher has applied for CGS 
funding in partnership with 5 other local schools 
The money applied for here will continue the Belham parents group work on air 
quality.  

 £ 
2,500.00 

930927 
/CGS 

Friends of Goose 
Green (FoGG) 

Community 
Gardening 
Club 

The FoGG community gardening club meets monthly in the children's 
playground. The sessions are run by a local gardener, Jane Booth from 3.30-
5pm last Tuesday of the month. These sessions keep the raised beds, trees 
and climbers well tended, watered and tidy whilst engaging the children, 
parents and carers with the plants and maintenance in a fun way. Each session 
is tailored to the season and what is available in the playground. The club has 
been running now for over 5 years with many of the local children participating 
all the way through their primary school days. This club and the engagement of 
children who use the playground has meant that this much loved space does 
not suffer from misuse or damage. Apart from the odd trampled plant during 
play. 

 £ 
1,200.00 

908574 HOurBank, Pecan All Saints 
Community 
Cafe 

HOurBank and All Saints aim to build community and help the marginalised and 
isolated, through a free weekly community cafe.  
"It's very sociable, you can always pop in have a chat, or have a cup of tea and 
everyone is nice and friendly." (HOurBank member) Due to recent closures of 
centres there is a need for places where people with low level mental health 
issues, the elderly and isolated can feel welcome. At the cafe HOurBank 

 £ 
5,000.00 

46



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

provides the opportunity for attendees to go deeper by becoming HOurBank 
members, sharing their skills with others, becoming active citizens and feeling 
value for what they can give as well as receive. "It involves people in the 
community, it values people and in turn it makes you value yourself. It helps 
people & in turn you help others. It's self-perpetuating." (HOurBank member 
2017) In this way the cafe is building the community capacity of attendees by 
helping them grow in confidence and interpersonal skills. Each year HOurBank 
conducts a survey to help us build up a picture of what we are achieving and 
could do better. This year the survey was based on a Social Return on 
Investment study used by housing associations.  
“I can confirm that now with this, your [HOurBank] social value for the two years 
is £775,364.  As the investment for year one is £34,000 and £40,000 (total of  
£74,000), then your Social Return on Investment is a whopping… £701,364!!!” 
(Timebank UK and SRoI evaluator) 
94% of members surveyed would recommend HOurBank to a friend. 

911738 Kado projects CIO Peckham Rye 
Music Festival 
Community 
Day 

On Sunday 13th May 2018 Kado projects will deliver the community day of the 
Peckham Rye Music festival in Copeland Park. This day will celebrate local 
talent in the form of live music, dance, spoken word, food and family & 
children’s activities (bread making, circus skills, art). Many of the performances 
on the day will be the culmination of months of hard work from local people and 
collaborations with existing local groups (B supreme, CDR, Reprezent radio 
and 4WDNUP and Illuminated Arts).  
Peckham has undergone many changes in recent years and the community is 
at risk of fragmenting. At our previous festivals residents have told us they felt 
excluded due to financial restrictions, we hope to address this by offering all 
admission and all activities will be free of charge.   It is our hope that through 
offering fun, inclusive and wide ranging activities we can encourage a wider 
section of the community to get involved and feel part of the festival, giving 
them the opportunity to enjoy  and participate in arts and cultural activities, 
helping to break down barriers and develop stronger relationships.  Peckham is 
a thriving part of London with exciting and diverse residents,  we want to bring 
people together across generations, cultures and economic positions to explore 

 £ 
2,125.00 

47



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

the creativity and diversity we have on our doorstep. We will be open to 500 
local people to attend on the day.  

910213 Latter-Rain Drop-in 
Centre 

Latter-Rain 
Drop-in Centre 

The project is a locally based community drop-in centre that caters for the 
elderly, lonely, disabled, jobless and anyone who is in need of a hot meal and 
to socialise. We aim to achieve a project that gives vulnerable residents 
confidence, self-worth and a sense of belonging as a human being.  
This will benefit residents who are housebound and unable to leave their homes 
by themselves as the group of volunteers would go and collect them and take 
them back to their homes. Those who are lonely will have a venue where they 
will meet others and socialise and there is always a hot meal provided for every 
one. Mrs Eloise Guthrie, a member of the local church identified the need of 
such a project and have committed her time and resources  into  making this a 
reality. 
The local church offers the venue for use and also weekly finances the project. 
There is a sincere appreciation from the attendees who on occasions try to help 
in the well-being of the local church. Training and education in Technology is 
imparted to those who are computer illiterate to equip them for the digital 
challenges which we are now facing in this age. With the regular input of 
trained, qualified health awareness personnel in attendance, the lifestyle of 
many have improved. The project is already established, but help is required as 
the attendance is increasing. 

 £ 
3,600.00 

911659 Peckham Vision Peckham 
Vision Town 
Centre 
Community 
Hubs project 

Idea: Further develop hubs in Holdrons Arcade shop & Bussey studio for 
Peckham town centre info & community action. Shop - provide daily visual info, 
twice weekly drop-in planning & regeneration sessions & on related matters, 
sell local made goods. Studio - is a community hub for education & training on 
planning & regeneration & expanding role as info & skills craft hub. 
Responds to desires of many local people to come together to share & take 
action on their aspirations for Peckham as the place where they live. 
Aims: 
*Expand local community team, support existing work & develop it further.

 £ 
2,600.00 

48



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£] 

*Develop better understanding of impact of planning & redevelopment on social
regeneration including health & well being through self created opportunities & 
as partner in the SLG Peckham Experiment project. 
*Provide artisan & craft spaces where local people explore & learn new skills,
create new enterprises & enhance their lives. 
Targets and milestones 2018/19. To develop: 
*The studio as a place for learning about reuse of buildings, spaces and
materials 
*A back office volunteer team to support the work
*A team to deliver sessions of art and craft practices
There are no other projects with this focus. 
Active working links with:  Copeland Park; Rye Lane Traders Association; 
Umbrella for Women to Women; Community Southwark; South London Gallery; 
Southwark Law Centre, Pioneer Health Foundation. 
Delivery is based on successful experience of 11 years work. 

912007 SL CREATIVES 
PROJECT 

S L 
CREATIVES 
PROJECT 

S L Creatives Project is a Social Enterprise that supports Females of all ages in 
South London Boroughs. 
Our mission is to offer guidance and support into employment and 
apprenticeships. We support clients with confirmed interviews.  Our aim is to 
reduce unemployment within the South London communities. We encourage 
young women to build confidence and successfully providing guidance into 
apprenticeship schemes and preparing them for future interviews. 
We acknowledge the power of fashion and the importance of positive 
appearance when embarking on a new chapter. Our experienced consultants 
will spend 2 hours providing assistance in preparation for their interview. 
We have teamed up with a number of fashion houses that are supporting our 
movement.  
We offer free suitable workwear for each and every client who are taking 
positive steps. 
We believe that the we are able to make a positive impact within Peckham.  We 
aim to see 20 clients per week and, will be prepared and dressed for interviews.  
We know that we are able to provide successful outcome by our location. We 

 £ 
4,899.75 

49



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

encourage clients to think in a positive way of gaining experience through 
training and obtaining long term employment. 
Holding monthly events will benefit the community and encourage residents to 
talk and inspire each other.  Clients that are in successful employment to speak 
about their experience to gain more confidence, this will in turn encourage other 
Women to take positive steps into employment. 

910335 Southwark Day 
Centre for Asylum 
Seekers 

Volunteers 
helping 
refugees, 
building local 
trust. 

Our Day Centres at the Copleston Centre (Tuesday ) in The Lane ward and 
Peckham Park Road Baptist Church (Wednesday) in Livesey South provide the 
only drop-in service in Southwark for the local population of some 13-16,000 
refugees. Our work, which heavily depends on volunteers, provides a safe and 
welcoming environment for vulnerable clients and helps achieve wider 
community integration and understanding. Supervised by a part-time staff 
member, over 30 volunteers of all ages and backgrounds - including some of 
the refugees themselves - provide advice and practical help for the 50-70 
clients who come to each centre session. The 2 centres provide: 
• Destitution services e.g., food parcels, food bank vouchers, clothing, toiletries, 
baby items etc. 
• A hot nutritious meal supported by Fareshare Food Deliveries and our 
allotment produce 
• NHS Nurse checks on site, access to GP surgeries etc. 
• Provision of advice and advocacy sessions on a range of issues including 
Asylum and Immigration, Health, Housing and other Welfare matters from 
SDCAS generalist advice workers, NHS advisers, Citizen’s Advice Bureau and 
Southwark Law 
Centre solicitors and case workers. 
• Therapeutic activities including Reflexology, Massage, Group Therapy and 
Gardening/Allotment sessions 
• English Classes/Parenting Classes 
• Playgroup/crèche for under 5’s and family activities 
• Social events 

 £          
2,000.00  

50



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

910427 Southwark Law 
Centre 

Refugee Week 
2018 Film & 
Discussion 

We aim to increase awareness and understanding of the plight of refugees in 
order to promote greater community cohesion.  We have found that real life 
storytelling, in the form of films depicting the refugee experience, are powerful 
tools to promote understanding and empathy for our community members who 
are refugees.  We combine our film events with panel led open discussions to 
increase engagement and answer questions that may arise around refugee 
related issues.  We work to support the efforts of partner organisations who are 
working directly with refugees in our community.  These frontline partner 
organisations have expressed an ongoing need to engage the local community 
and provide information and understanding around the refugee experience. 
These organizations include Southwark Refugee Communities Forum, 
Southwark Day Centre for Asylum Seekers and Southwark Refugee and 
Migrant Project.  This film night event will be part of a larger programme of 
events which we will be promoting and supporting as part of Refugee Week 
2018. We find that members of the community who attend one of our film nights 
are likely to engage with more of our Refugee Week events as the films build 
empathy for the refugee experience. Our goal is to educate the local community 
so that we can champion the idea that our diversity is our strength. 

 £          
1,500.00  

912044 Southwark 
Mediation Centre 

Pelican Estate 
- reducing ASB 
and gang 
related crime 

There are currently  high levels of youth and gang related crime and disorder on 
the Pelican Estate as reported by the statutory agencies involved. We would 
work with these agencies e.g. SASBU, Police, Youth Offending Team to identify 
young people and families most at risk of involvement or possible future 
involvement in such crime. Over 6 months we would use a mix of youth [aged 
16-19] and adult mediators to meet with young people and families to establish 
their concerns and how they can work with the mediators to reduce crime and 
fear of crime. Families and young people from the estate and surrounding area 
would be brought together and tasked with what they can do to address these 
issues, uniting families and communities faced with the same issues. Work 
would be done directly with individual young people, groups and gangs where 
friction is leading to violence and crime.  Mediation would be carried out using 
shuttle and direct mediation, involving youth mediators where safe and 
appropriate. This would aim to reduce the fear of violence and the need for 

 £          
4,600.00  

51



Ref: Name of your group: Name of 
project or idea: 

Describe what the project is trying to achieve, including why it is needed 
and demonstrate how it is going to benefit residents, of the ward you 
have selected:  

 Amount 
requested 
[£]  

young people to carry knives for protection. We would reach out to young 
people who carry knives, engage in ASB and crime and are borderline or 
already involved in gang related matters. Our aim is to reduce the number of 
young people involved in crime and disorder and there will be a reduction in 
incidents of knife enabled crimes, disorder and anti-social behaviour. 

909934 SOUTHWARK 
STREET PASTORS 

SOUTHWARK 
STREET 
PASTORS 

Southwark Street Pastors  are trained volunteers who engage with the 
vulnerable and disadvantaged through a well developed network of 
relationships with the police, local councils and statutory and voluntary 
organisations. In this ward, across Rye lane through Blenheim Grove to 
Peckham Road and all side roads in this area, we patrol in teams of 3-5 
operating from All saints Peckham or Rye Lane Chapel. Street Pastors engage 
sensitively with a view to caring, listening and helping, and signposting those in 
need to other services. They also identify the most vulnerable and seek to 
ensure a safe passage home or away from trouble. Examples are lone females 
being shown attention by unwanted male admirers or those that require 
immediate first aid. Street Pastors are volunteers who are  trained and 
supported to fulfil specialised ministry on the streets of our borough especially 
in the night time economy. 

 £          
1,632.00  

 

52



Item No. 
8.

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 March 2018

Meeting Name:
Peckham and Nunhead 
Community Council

Report title: Cleaner Greener Safer 2018-2019: Capital Funding 
Allocation

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

Livesey, Nunhead, Peckham, Peckham Rye, The 
Lane

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATION

1. To approve further allocations of funds for the 2018-19 Cleaner Greener Safer 
(CGS) capital programme in the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council 
area from the list of applications set out in Appendix 1.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2. The council’s cleaner greener safer capital programme has been running since 
2003.

  
3. In the first fifteen years of the CGS programme, £36,033,000 has been 

allocated to community councils leading to 2,812 projects being approved. 

4. In the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council area, £9,061,929 has been 
allocated to 627 projects, 575 of which have been completed to date.

5. Examples of the types of projects that have been funded include:

 Parks, community gardens, landscaping, tree planting and wildlife areas
 Children’s playgrounds, youth facilities, ball courts and cycle tracks
 Lighting, security measures, pavements, streets, and tackling ‘grot spots’
 Grants to local groups to self-deliver projects

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

6. There is £402,857 available for the 2018-2019 CGS capital programme for 
new projects in the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council area.

7. Unallocated funding from previous years’ programmes will also be reallocated 
subject to approval in a separate report.

8. Eligible proposals must bring about a permanent improvement and make an 
area cleaner, greener or safer. 

9. Proposals with revenue costs, including salaries, costs for events, festivals, 
workshops or other one-off events are not eligible for capital funding. CCTV 
proposals and internal improvements to housing property and works on 
schools where there is no access to the general public are also not eligible. 

53
Agenda Item 8



10. Works on private property are not eligible unless there is a long-term 
guarantee of public access or a demonstrable public benefit. 

11. The application form invited expressions of interest for the applicants to deliver 
projects themselves. A due diligence exercise to ensure that this is both 
practical and realistic has been undertaken as part of the feasibility process. In 
such cases, the council would give the funding allocation to the applicant in the 
form of a capital grant, with appropriate conditions attached.

Policy implications

12. The cleaner green safer programme is fully aligned with the council’s policies 
around sustainability, regeneration and community engagement.

Community impact statement

13. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 
involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils take 
decisions on local matters including environmental improvement and community 
safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that 
affect the area.

14. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. The cleaner greener safer 
programme is an important tool in achieving community participation.

15. In fulfilling the above objectives of community councils to bring together and 
involve Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been 
given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the 
council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 
conduct.

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristics and those who do not share it.

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 
and those that do not share it.

16. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

17. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of:

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic.

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic.

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 

54



participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under- 
represented.

18. Ideas for CGS projects come from the local community, the majority via a simple 
project nomination form available in electronic and paper format.

Resource implications

19. The funding for the CGS capital programme from 2011 to 2021 was approved by 
the cabinet and is part of the council's overall capital programme as detailed in 
the capital programme 2011- 2021 report dated 21 June 2011.

20. The funding for the 2017-/18 CGS capital programme was approved by the 
cabinet member for transport environment and recycling as detailed in the 
launch of cleaner greener safer capital programme 2015-16 report dated August 
2014.

21. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital costs of 
the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to organisations, the award 
amount announced at community council includes professional fees. The 
community council award letter to grant recipients details the grant amount only, 
excluding these fees.

22. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding.  Projects 
that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be reported to community 
council and available budgets may be reallocated to other projects. Revenue 
costs not covered by maintenance or the contractual liability period will fall upon 
the asset owner. The department will be notified of the likely costs before the 
schemes proceeds, in order to secure permission to implement the scheme.

23. After the defects and liability period, or three year maintenance period in the 
case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the asset owner, 
for example housing, parks, highways, or in some cases external asset owners. 
Therefore, there are no revenue implications to the highways division as a result 
of approving the proposed allocation. 

24. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored 
and reported on as part of the overall capital programme.

25. Value for money will be ensured when the contract is procured by following the 
council’s contract standing orders.

Consultation 

26. All cleaner greener safer projects require consultation with stakeholders, 
including the project applicant, local residents, tenants and residents 
associations and local community groups where appropriate.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

27. The Local Government Act 2000 (‘the 2000 Act’) gives the Leader the power to 
delegate any executive function to whoever lawfully can undertake the function. 

55



The allocation of the CGS capital fund is an executive function.

28. Community councils are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act 
and executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader. The terms of 
the delegation are set out in part 3H of the council’s constitution.

29. This report recommends that that community council approve the allocation of 
funds to the individual projects specified at Appendix 1.  Paragraph 14, Part 3H 
of the constitution enables community councils to approve “the allocation of 
funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and revenue schemes of a local nature, 
using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet”.

30. Community councils further have powers under paragraph 16, Part 3H of the 
constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the local schemes.

31. In allocating funding under the CGS community councils must have regard to the 
council’s equality duty set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report 
author has demonstrated how those duties need to be considered in the body of 
the report at paragraphs 12 to 17 in the community impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance 

32. This report seeks the approval of the Peckham and Nunhead community council for 
the allocation of funds (£402,857) for the 2017/18 cleaner greener safer (CGS) 
programme in the Peckham and Nunhead community council area from the list of 
applications set out in Appendix 1.

33. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource implications in 
the report that the proposed allocations will be contained within the council’s capital 
programme.

34. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 
recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

56



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Cabinet Report: Capital Programme 
2011–2021 – 21 June 2011, Minutes 
item 8
Website link:
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MI
d=3813&Ver=4

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme 2011-21 – 21 June 2011, 
Minutes item 8

Website link:
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MI
d=3813&Ver=4

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

Launch of Cleaner Greener Safer 
Capital Programme 2015/16 - August 
2014
Website link:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ie
DecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798

Environment and Leisure 
/ Highways
160 Tooley Street

Michelle Normanly
020 7525 0862

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Peckham and Nunhead Community Council Cleaner Greener 

Safer Capital programme 2018-19: Applications

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Iaan Smuts, Group Manager, Community Projects
Report Author Michelle Normanly, Senior Project Manager

Version Final
Dated 6 March 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included

Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 6 March 2018

57

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=3813&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=3813&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=3813&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=3813&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=3813&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=302&MId=3813&Ver=4
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798


APPENDIX 1
Peckham and Nunhead Community Council
Cleaner Greener Safer Capital programme 2018/19: Applications

Reference Proposal Name Ward Programme
893633 Ledbury Estate outside gym Livesey (South) CGS
903329 Harry Lamborn SHU communal areas 

renovation
Livesey (South) CGS

907159 Caroline Gardens communal recycling bins 
surround

Livesey (South) CGS

907226 Caroline Gardens roadway tarmac Livesey (South) CGS
908354 Cycle parking or storage for Friary Estate - 

Aylesbury, Exeter, Cardiff, Grantham, 
Bridgnorth Houses

Livesey (South) CGS

909353 Safer Community Livesey (South) CGS
909355 Caroline Gardens restoration Livesey (South) CGS
910192 Leyton Square Computer Project Livesey (South) CGS
910318 Green Pockets for the Old Lindley Livesey (South) CGS
910493 Acorn Estate Improvement Livesey (South) CGS
600045 Ashdene Grot Spot (Acorn Estate) Livesey (South) CGS
911964 Operation Peace Garden Livesey (South) CGS
912295 Revitalise the Flower beds in and around 

Tortington house and surrounding blocks
Livesey (South) CGS

912312 Fencing of the flower beds in and around 
Cardiff house

Livesey (South) CGS

912346 Unwin and Friary TRA Hall improvements Livesey (South) CGS
600100 Ledbury Estate Towers Community 

Gardening Project 
Livesey (South) CGS

600053 Install School Keep Clear Markings outside 
Peckham Park Primary School

Livesey (South) CGS or Highways

912275 Over 50s Zumba class Livesey (South) Revenue
893203 Dayton Grove walls and gates Nunhead CGS

58



893544 Dayton Grove front garden wall Nunhead CGS
905615 A lockable Toilet Installation For Kirkwood 

Nature Reserve
Nunhead CGS

906867 Gibbon Road Revamp! Nunhead CGS
909130 Planting along the walls around the estate on 

30-38 Solomons Passage
Nunhead CGS

909512 Howbury Planter Nunhead CGS
910533 Queens Road Planters and Baskets Project Nunhead CGS

600041 Arnold Dobson House  Gate for safety Nunhead CGS
912496 The neighbourhood living wall Nunhead CGS
912503 Queens Road Living Wall Nunhead CGS
912742 Cossall Survival Techniques Nunhead CGS
600101 EXTEND 90 QUEENS ROAD GARDEN Nunhead CGS
903178 Green Grey Southwark Nunhead CGS or Highways
903186 Green Grey Southwark Nunhead CGS or Highways
909391 Bicycle hangars in Ansdell Road Nunhead CGS or Highways
910226 Bike Hangars for Ansdell Road Nunhead CGS or Highways
911633 Ansdell Road - Part road closure Nunhead CGS or Highways
912718 Camouflaging bin housings for Beautifying 

Dayton Grove
Nunhead CGS or Highways

906703 Gloucester Grove Estate: 
Green/Environmental Improvement - Phase 1

Peckham CGS

906716 Gloucester Grove Estate: Additional Cycle 
Lockers

Peckham CGS

909726 Peckham Square artwork Peckham CGS
910484 Outdoor gym: upper body Peckham CGS
911982 A Safer & Greener Willowbrook - greening Peckham CGS
912568 Peckham Peace Wall Relocation Peckham CGS
912570 Sumner Park Boundary improvements Peckham CGS
912583 Sumner Park play improvements Peckham CGS

59



600074 Damilola Taylor Centre football pitch 
extension

Peckham CGS

600075 Damilola Taylor Centre - Young peoples Gym 
refit

Peckham CGS

600096 Hoyland Close bin storage area Peckham CGS
600118 A Safer & Greener Willowbrook - lighting and 

cycle storage
Peckham CGS

910495 Pavements St Georges Way/Burgess Park Peckham CGS or Highways

600077 Brighter spaces Peckham CGS or Highways
909346 Food waste bins for my block of flats Peckham Revenue
911939 Keep the spirit of Christmas Alive Peckham 

Square
Peckham Revenue

600076 Do and don't stickers for recycling bins Peckham Revenue
909432 Peckham hanging baskets 2018/19 Peckham & Livesey 

(South)
CGS

600052 North Peckham School Cluster Traffic 
Management Review

Peckham & Livesey 
(South)

CGS or Highways

600094 Making Commercial Way safer Peckham & Livesey 
(South)

CGS or Highways

884789 Memorial to the late Edith Luckhurst (1881) 
Fancy Stationer

Peckham Rye CGS

900878 electric charging point for waveney avenue Peckham Rye CGS
910163 Green gym at Homestall Peckham Rye CGS
911731 Solar Panels on Brenchley Gardens Estate Peckham Rye CGS

911777 Green Roofs on Brenchley Gardens Estate Peckham Rye CGS
600020 Interpretation boards for Peckham Rye 

Common and Park (Peckham Rye)
Peckham Rye CGS

912315 Homestall Road Sports Ground picnic area Peckham Rye CGS

912627 The One Tree Hill tidy up Peckham Rye CGS
912689 Limes Walk - Front garden Peckham Rye CGS

60



600072 Resurface the road across Piermont Green Peckham Rye CGS

909516 Cycle Hanger - The Gardens Peckham Rye CGS or Highways
910252 Homestall Road fly tipping prevention Peckham Rye CGS or Highways
894153 Atwell Estate Alleyway Security The Lane CGS
600004 Elim House - Furniture and catering 

equipment
The Lane CGS

909412 All Saints Peckham Church Fence The Lane CGS
910438 Improving Peckham Rye Common North The Lane CGS
910473 Interpretation boards for Peckham Rye 

Common and Park (The Lane)
The Lane CGS

910529 New planting areas for Warwick Gardens The Lane CGS
911729 New access ramp and exterior lighting for 

Copleston Centre.
The Lane CGS

600038 Clifton Estate play park The Lane CGS
912887 Creed House Refurbishment The Lane CGS
600071 Repainting the North Railway Bridge over Rye 

Lane
The Lane CGS

600113 Fat Macy's The Lane CGS
600114 Cycle Storage for Strickland Court-East 

Dulwich Road Estate
The Lane CGS

885919 More street trees The Lane CGS or Highways
890245 Bike Hangar on Bellenden Road The Lane CGS or Highways
891050 Bike hanger for Bellenden road residents The Lane CGS or Highways
902387 Clifton Estate pedestrian crossing The Lane CGS or Highways
912360 Oglander Road - cycle hangar (The Lane) The Lane CGS or Highways
912515 Maxted Road and Bellenden Road Junction 

Zebra crossing and cycle lane (The Lane)
The Lane CGS or Highways

910270 Friends of Goose Green (FoGG) Gardening 
Club

The Lane Revenue

61



Item No. 
9.

Classification:
Open

Date:
19 March  2018

Meeting Name:
Peckham and Nunhead 
Community Council

Report title: Community Council Highways Capital
Investment 2017-18 and 2018-19

Ward(s) or groups 
affected:

Livesey (South), Nunhead, Peckham, Peckham Rye, 
The Lane

From: Head of Highways

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To approve further allocations of funds for the 2017-18 and 2018-19 
Community Council Highways Capital Investment programme in the Peckham 
and Nunhead Community Council area from the list of proposals set out in 
Appendices 1 and 2 attached.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

2. The council’s non-principal road investment programme prioritises works on 
non-principal roads on a borough-wide basis and this investment forms the 
largest part of the annual investment programme.

3. Community councils are allocated a devolved fund of £800,000 each year from 
the total annual programme to spend on their priorities for highway renewal 
and maintenance that may not be prioritised as part of the borough-wide 
programme.

4. The financial provision for each community council is pro-rata by ward, as 
published in the highways capital investment programme 2014-15 report. 

  
5. Commencing in 2017-18, the scope of the fund has been widened to permit 

the full range of minor traffic and highway capital schemes rather than solely 
like-for-like repair and replacement.  Examples of the types of works which can 
be funded include:

 Footway and carriageway resurfacing
 traffic calming
 localised repairs
 accessibility improvements
 Footway buildouts
 Cycle hangars

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

6. Peckham and Nunhead Community Council has been allocated £342,857 for 
highway improvement works of its choice. This is a combined allocation for 
financial years 2017-18 and 2018-19.

62
Agenda Item 9



7. This amounts to £76,190 per ward, apart from Livesey which has £38,095 in 
this community council area.

8. This can be spent on any non-principal road in the area. 

9. Proposals on private land or housing estates, ideas which are contrary to 
council policy, or are outside the control of the council, are not eligible – for 
example the removal of traffic calming measures without suitable 
replacements, and speed cameras or traffic speed indicators are not eligible 
for funding. Ideas which do not comply with council policy are also ineligible. 

Policy implications

10. The community council highways capital investment programme is part of the 
investment programme set out in the highway infrastructure asset management 
plan (HIAMP).

Community impact statement

11. The roles and functions of community councils include the promotion of 
involvement of local people in the democratic process. Community councils take 
decisions on local matters including environmental improvement and community 
safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and strategies that 
affect the area.

12. An explicit objective within community councils is that they be used to actively 
engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local 
communities on issues of shared or mutual interest. 

13. In fulfilling the above objectives of community councils to bring together and 
involve Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also been 
given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which requires the 
council to have due regard when taking decision to the need to:

a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 
conduct.

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristics and those who do not share it.

c.  Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 
and those that do not share it.

14. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, 
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation.

15. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of:

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic.

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic.

63



c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under- 
represented.

16. This year, ideas for the community council highways capital investment 
programme have been invited from the local community via the cleaner greener 
safer programme’s simple project nomination form available in electronic and 
paper format.

Financial implications

17. The funding for the community council highways investment programme from 
2011 to 2021 was approved by the cabinet and is part of the council's overall 
capital programme as detailed in the capital programme 2011–2021 report dated 
21 June 2011. 

18. A further £4m was approved by the cabinet on 25 September 2012 to be 
included in 2021/22 to allow for an extra year of investment in the non-principal 
roads network.

Resource implications

19. The delivery of the proposed works will be through the highways and 
professional services term contract and will be managed by the transport 
projects team in the highways division. All works will be subject to quality and 
financial review through the highways division’s monitoring processes led by the 
Head of Highways.

20. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be monitored 
and reported on as part of the overall capital programme. 

Sustainability implications 

21. All materials excavated from the highway are sent for recycling and footway sub-
base and base course materials are incorporated into the recycling regimes of 
our Highways and Professional Services term contractor.

22. Every attempt will be made to minimise noise and disruption during the course of 
the proposed works. Night and weekend working will only be used where site or 
network constraints require this approach. However, this will only be as a last 
resort and following full consultation with the noise team.

Consultation

23. Where appropriate, stakeholder consultation will take place prior, during and on 
completion of works.

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy 

24. The Local Government Act 2000 (‘the 2000 Act’) gives the Leader the power to 
delegate any executive function to whoever lawfully can undertake the function. 
The allocation of the highways capital investment programme funds is an 

64



executive function.

25. Community councils are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act 
and executive functions can be delegated to them by the Leader. The terms of 
the delegation are set out in part 3H of the council’s constitution.

26. This report is recommending that the community council approve the reallocation 
of available funds from the highways capital investment programme.  Paragraph 
14, Part 3H of the constitution enables community councils to approve “the 
allocation of funds to cleaner, greener, safer capital and revenue schemes of a 
local nature, using the resources and criteria identified by the cabinet”.

27. Community councils further have powers under paragraph 16, Part 3H of the 
constitution to oversee and take responsibility for the development and 
implementation of the local schemes.

28. In allocating funding under the highways capital investment programme, 
community councils must have regard to the council’s equality duty set out in 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The report author has demonstrated how 
those duties need to be considered in the body of the report at paragraphs 11 to 
16  in the community impact statement.

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance

29. This report seeks the approval of the Peckham and Nunhead Community Council 
for the allocation of funds (£342,857) for the 2017/18 and 2018/19 community 
council highways capital investment programme in the Peckham and Nunhead 
community council area from the list of applications set out in Appendix 1 and 
officer proposals set out in Apendix 2.

30. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource implications in 
the report that the proposed allocations will be contained within the council’s capital 
programme.

31. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 
recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue budgets.

65



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers Held At Contact
Cabinet Report: Capital Programme 
2011–2021 – 21 June 2011

Website link:
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/documents/s20034/Report%20Capit
al%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

George Mellish
020 7525 7903

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme 2011-21 – 21 June 2011

Website link:
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com
/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%
20General%20Fund%20Capital%20P
rogamme%202011-21.pdf

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

George Mellish
020 7525 7903

Quarter 1 Capital Reporting for 
2012/13 and Capital
Programme Refresh for 2012/13 – 
2021/22

Website link:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/d
ocuments/s31724/Report%20Quarter
%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20f
or%20201213%20and%20Capital%2
0Programme%20Refresh%20for%20
201213%20-%20202122.pdf

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

George Mellish
020 7525 7903

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme Details

Website link:
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/d
ocuments/s31730/Appendix%20F%2
0General%20fund%20capital%20pro
gramme%20details.pdf

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

George Mellish
020 7525 7903

Highway Infrastructure Asset 
Management Plan (HIAMP) Version 
1.0

Website link:
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/transpor
t-and-roads/roadworks-and-highway-
improvements/highway-infrastructure-
asset-management-plan-hiamp

Environment and Social 
Regeneration / Highways
160 Tooley Street

George Mellish
020 7525 7903

66

http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20034/Report%20Capital%20Programme%202011-2021.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwarksites.com/documents/s20040/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Progamme%202011-21.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31724/Report%20Quarter%201%20Capital%20Reporting%20for%20201213%20and%20Capital%20Programme%20Refresh%20for%20201213%20-%20202122.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31730/Appendix%20F%20General%20fund%20capital%20programme%20details.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31730/Appendix%20F%20General%20fund%20capital%20programme%20details.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31730/Appendix%20F%20General%20fund%20capital%20programme%20details.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s31730/Appendix%20F%20General%20fund%20capital%20programme%20details.pdf
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/roadworks-and-highway-improvements/highway-infrastructure-asset-management-plan-hiamp
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/roadworks-and-highway-improvements/highway-infrastructure-asset-management-plan-hiamp
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/roadworks-and-highway-improvements/highway-infrastructure-asset-management-plan-hiamp
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/transport-and-roads/roadworks-and-highway-improvements/highway-infrastructure-asset-management-plan-hiamp


APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix 1 Peckham and Nunhead Community Council Community Council 

Highways Capital Investment 2018/19: Applications
Appendix 2 Peckham and Nunhead Community Council Community Council 

Highways Capital Investment 2018/19: Officer proposals

AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Richard Wells, Group Manager, Community Projects
Report Author George Mellish, Senior Project Manager

Version Final
Dated 6 March 2018

Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included

Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance 
and Governance

Yes Yes

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to ConstitutionalTeam 6 March 2018

67



APPENDIX 1
Peckham and Nunhead Community Council
Community Councils Highways Capital Investment programme 2017/18 and 2018/19: Applications

Reference Proposal Name Ward Programme
600053 Install School Keep Clear Markings outside Peckham Park Primary School Livesey 

(South)
Highways

903178 Green Grey Southwark Nunhead Highways
903186 Green Grey Southwark Nunhead Highways
909391 Bicycle hangars in Ansdell Road Nunhead Highways
910226 Bike Hangars for Ansdell Road Nunhead Highways
911633 Ansdell Road - Part road closure Nunhead Highways
912718 Camouflaging bin housings for Beautifying Dayton Grove Nunhead Highways
910495 Pavements St Georges Way/Burgess Park Peckham Highways
600077 Brighter spaces Peckham Highways
600052 North Peckham School Cluster Traffic Management Review Peckham & 

Livesey 
(South)

Highways

600094 Making Commercial Way safer Peckham & 
Livesey 
(South)

Highways

909516 Cycle Hanger - The Gardens Peckham 
Rye

Highways

910252 Homestall Road fly tipping prevention Peckham 
Rye

Highways

885919 More street trees The Lane Highways
890245 Bike Hangar on Bellenden Road The Lane Highways
891050 Bike hanger for Bellenden road residents The Lane Highways
902387 Clifton Estate pedestrian crossing The Lane Highways
912360 Oglander Road - cycle hangar (The Lane) The Lane Highways
912515 Maxted Road and Bellenden Road Junction Zebra crossing and cycle lane 

(The Lane)
The Lane Highways

68



APPENDIX 2
Peckham & Nunhead Community Council
Community Council Highways Capital Investment programme 2017/18 and 2018/19: Officer proposals

Reference Road Name Location Footway or 
Carriageway

Ward

1 Underhill Road Henslowe Road to Upland Road Carriageway East Dulwich / Peckham 
Rye

2 Underhill Road Barry Road - Dunstans Road Carriageway East Dulwich / Peckham 
Rye

3 Underhill Road Junction with Friern Road Carriageway East Dulwich / Peckham 
Rye

4 Underhill Road Barry Road junction with Friern Road Carriageway East Dulwich / Peckham 
Rye

5 Glengall Road Glengall Road. From junction of Latona Road-junction 
of Bianca Road

Carriageway Livesey (South)

6 Stanbury Road Small section of Stanbury Road which is just off 
Brayards Road

Carriageway Nunhead

7 Culmore Road Outside 42 Carriageway Nunhead
8 St Marys Road Junction with Evelina Road Carriageway Nunhead
9 Gibbon Road Extent of road Carriageway Nunhead

11 Meeting House Lane Outside 136, Surgery Carriageway Peckham / Livesey 
(South)

12 McDermott Road Outside 57 - outside 49 Carriageway The Lane 
13 Alpha Street Extent of road Carriageway The Lane 
14 Lyndhurst Way Lyndhurst Way to Chadwick Road Carriageway The Lane 
15 Blackpool Road Extent of road Carriageway The Lane 

69



 
PECKHAM AND NUNHEAD COMMUNITY COUNCIL AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN)

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017-18
NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team all amendments/queries

to Beverley Olamijulo Tel: 020 7525 7234

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

To all Members of the Community Council

Councillor Cleo Soanes (Chair)
Councillor Sandra Rhule (Vice-Chair)                                
Councillor Evelyn Akoto                   
Councillor Jasmine Ali
Councillor Sunil Chopra
Councillor Nick Dolezal                                             
Councillor Gavin Edwards                                           
Councillor Renata Hamvas 
Councillor Victoria Mills 

Members of the community council 
receiving electronic copies only

Councillor Fiona Colley 
Councillor Barrie Hargrove
Councillor Richard Livingstone
Councillor Jamille Mohammed                                
Councillor Johnson Situ
Councillor Michael Situ

Officers
Beverley Olamijulo
Constitutional Officer  Hub 2 
2nd Floor, 160 Tooley Street

Gill Kelly 
Community Councils Development Officer
Hub 3 5th Floor 160 Tooley Street

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

15

1

Others
Audit Commission
160 Tooley Street

Total:

Dated: 9 March 2018

1

26


	Agenda
	 
	5 Minutes from the previous meeting
	7 Allocation of Neighbourhoods Fund 2018-19
	Meeting Name:
	Date:
	Classification:
	Peckham and Nunhead Community Council
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION
	Resource implications
	Financial implications
	SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS
	Director of Law and Democracy
	(a) incur expenditure
	(b) give financial assistance to any person
	(c) enter into arrangements or agreements with any person
	(d) co-operate with or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of any person
	(e) exercise on behalf of any person any functions of that person and
	(f) provide staff, goods, services or accommodation to any person.
	Strategic Director of Finance and Governance
	BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
	Appendix 1

	8 Cleaner Greener Safer Capital Funding Programme 2018-2019
	Appendix 1- CGS proposals
	Appendix 1


	9 Community Council Highways Capital Investment 2017-2018 and 2018-2019
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 1

	Appendix 2
	PNCC


	 



